
Those persons wishing to speak on any item included on the agenda should fill out and submit 
to the Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator a “Request to Speak” form (name and address 
optional), which is available in the Board Room. If you have any questions, you may contact 
Dena Lamarque via email at dlamarque@cbwcd.org or contact the District office at (909) 626-
2711.  

The Chino Basin Water Conservation District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and amendments thereto. If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting or if 
you desire a copy of the Agenda in an alternate format, please contact the District office at 
(909) 626-2711 at least 48 hours prior to the advertised starting time of the meeting.

REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
4594 San Bernardino Street 

Montclair, CA  91763 

Monday, July 10, 2023 

2:00 p.m.  

A G E N D A  

INVOCATION 

CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE  

ROLL CALL  

Board Members: President Mark Ligtenberg, Vice President Kati Parker, Treasurer Gil 
Aldaco, Directors Amanda Coker, Teri Layton, Hanif Gulmahamad, Ryan 
Sonnenberg. 

ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), a two-thirds vote (or 
unanimous vote if less than two-thirds are present), is required to add an item for action, 
provided that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to 
the attention of the agency after the agenda was posted. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
July 10, 2023:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda      Page   2 

PRESENTATIONS 

Presentation of Certificate from the International Institute of Municipal Clerks of Certified 
Municipal Clerk to Alicia Fernandez 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

At this time, members of the public may present testimony as to why an item should be 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion.  Unless a member of the public or 
a Director request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, all items will be acted 
upon as a whole and by one vote.  Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be acted upon 
separately, following the Public Hearing procedures. 

1. Minutes.
a. June 12, 2023 – Regular Board Meeting. Approve.

2. Financial Reports.
a. May 2023.  Approve.

3. AB 1234.
a. Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report. Approve.
b. Compensation & Reimbursement Report. Approve.

4. Approve Director Attendance at the CSDA Annual Conference and the ACWA Fall
Conference

PUBLIC HEARINGS – None. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 

This is the time and place for the general public to address the Board of Directors.  Due to Brown 
Act requirements, action will not be taken on any issues not on the Agenda; however, the Board 
of Directors may refer comments and concerns to staff or request the item be placed on a future 
agenda. In accordance with District Resolution No. 2020-05: Decorum During Public Meetings, 
each speaker shall be allotted five (5) minutes of time to address the Board. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

5. Approve Amendments to Contracts with the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA),
including  Amendment 9 of the IEUA Contract (#460002246-009) for the Landscape
Evaluations, and Audit Programs, Amendment 10 of the IEUA Contract (#4600000861-
010) for the Residential Landscaping Program, and Amendment 4 of the IEUA Contract
(#460002827-004) for the Gardens in Every School Program 

Report by:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
 Scott Kleinrock, Conservation Programs Manager 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
July 10, 2023:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda      Page   3 

 Dave Schroeder, Facilities and Operations Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: Review, discuss and approve contracts with the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency (IEUA), including Amendment No. 9 of the IEUA Contract (#460002246-
009) for Landscape Evaluation and Audit Program, Amendment 10 of the IEUA Contract
(#4600000861-010 for the Residential Landscaping Program, and Amendment 4 of the
IEUA Contract (#460002827-004) for the Gardens in Every School Program.

6. Approve Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Chino Basin Water
Conservation District (District) and Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager

Report by: Ryan Sonnenberg, Personnel Committee Chair
 Lee McElhaney, Legal Counsel 

RECOMMENDATION: Review, discuss and approve Amendment No. 1 to Employment 
Agreement between the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) and Elizabeth 
Skrzat, General Manager, and authorize the Board President to execute the Agreement 
with retroactive pay to July 1, 2023. 

7. Approve Participation in the Solve the Water Crisis Coalition

Report by: Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager

RECOMMENDATION: Review, discuss, and approve participation in the Solve the Water
Crisis Coalition and instruct staff on how the District should participate.

8. Approve Participation in the California CLASS Prime Fund Investment Program and
Amendments to Policy No. 18 and Policy No. 19

Report by:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
  Kristi Even, Manager Eide Bailly 

RECOMMENDATION:  Review, discuss, and approve participation in the California CLASS 
Prime Fund investment program, assign a dollar amount to invest, and make changes to 
Policy No. 18 increasing the number of signatories to District accounts and Policy No. 19 
allowing for investments with JPAs serving public entities that are less than three years 
old. 

9. Approve Amendment to Policy No. 30-1

Report by: Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager

RECOMMENDATION: Review, discuss, and approve changes to Policy No. 30-1, specifying
overtime policy and procedures for employees working a traditional 40-hour workweek
as well as part-time employees, temporary employees, and interns.



Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
July 10, 2023:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda      Page   4 

10. Select a Candidate for the Southern California Network Seat C of the 2024-2026
California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors

Report by: Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager

RECOMMENDATION: Review, discuss, and select a candidate for the Southern California
Network Seat C of the 2024-2026 California Special Districts Association Board of
Directors.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – None 

DIRECTOR ORAL REPORTS 

This is the time and place for the Board of Directors to report on any items of interest.  Upon 
request by an individual Director, the Board may choose to take action on any of the subject 
matters listed below. 

President Ligtenberg 

Vice President Parker      

Treasurer Aldaco 

Director Layton 

Director Coker 

Director Gulmahamad  

Director Sonnenberg 

STAFF ORAL REPORTS 

General Manager/Secretary Report 

Board Attorney Report 

CLOSED SESSION 

11. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)
KAISER Foundation Health Plan, Inc., et al. vs. Chino Basin Water Conservation District;
and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No.: CIVDS 1933655



Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
July 10, 2023:  Regular Board Meeting Agenda      Page   5 

12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL
Government Code section 54956.8. Possible acquisition of property rights for
underground storage of supplemental water.

ADJOURN 

The Board of Directors will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the Chino Basin Water 
Conservation District, to be held on Monday, August 14, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. at District 
Headquarters, located at 4594 San Bernardino Street, Montclair, CA 91763. 

I, Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator of the Chino Basin Water 
Conservation District, do hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been posted by 2:00 p.m. 
on Wednesday July 5, 2023. 

____________________________________________ 
Dena Y. Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator 





 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING  
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

4594 San Bernardino Street 
Montclair, CA  91763 

 
Monday, June 12, 2023 

 
M I N U T E S 

 
 
INVOCATION –   Director Layton led the Board in the invocation.  
 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE –   President Ligtenberg called the meeting to order at 2:00 
p.m.  and led the audience in the flag salute.  
 
ROLL CALL  
 
Board Members Present: President Mark Ligtenberg 
    Vice President Kati Parker  
 Treasurer Gil Aldaco 
    Director Teri Layton  
    Director Hanif Gulmahamad  

Director Ryan Sonnenberg – arrived at 3:36 p.m.     
 

Board Members Absent:      Director Amanda Coker 
                                               
General Counsel Present: Leland McElhaney, Esq.  
 
Staff Present: General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat 
             Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Dena Lamarque 

Conservation Programs Manager Scott Kleinrock 
Facilities Maintenance Manager Dave Schroeder 
Administrative Services Manager Alicia Fernandez 
 

Guest:                       Kristi Even, Manager Government Advisory Services, Eide Bailly LLP 
       
 
 
 
 
 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 2 
 
 

ADDITIONS OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), a two-thirds vote (or 
unanimous vote if less than two-thirds are present), is required to add an item for action, 
provided that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to 
the attention of the agency after the agenda was posted. 
 
PRESENTATIONS – None. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
At this time, members of the public may present testimony as to why an item should be 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion.  Unless a member of the public or 
a Director request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, all items will be acted 
upon as a whole and by one vote.  Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be acted upon 
separately, following the Public Hearing procedures. 
 
1. Minutes. 

a. May 8, 2023 – Regular Board Meeting. Approved. 
b. May 24, 2023 – Finance Committee Meeting. Approved. 

 
2. Financial Reports. 

a. April 2023.  Approved. 
 
3. AB 1234. 

a. Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report. Approved. 
b. Compensation & Reimbursement Report. Approved. 

 
A motion was made by Director Gulmahamad, seconded by Director Layton, and carried on the 
following vote: 
 

Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to approve the Consent Calendar.  
 

MOVED: Gulmahamad SECONDED:   Layton APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:        None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None. 
 
 
 
 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 3 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This is the time and place for the general public to address the Board of Directors.  Due to the 
Brown Act requirements, action will not be taken on any issues not on the agenda; however, 
the Board of Directors may refer comments and concerns to staff or request the item be placed 
on a future agenda. In accordance with District Resolution No. 2020-05: Decorum During Public 
Meetings, each speaker shall be allotted five (5) minutes of time to address the Board. 
 
President Ligtenberg opened the Public Comment period. The Board Clerk stated there were no 
public communications received. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
4. Approve Agreement No. 2023-06 with North American Weather Consultants, Inc. 

(NAWC) and the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) for Cloud Seeding 
Program Equipment Lease  
 
General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the staff report explaining that in 2022 the 
Board approved an agreement between NAWC and CBWCD, but SAWPA was not named 
in the agreement. ACWA/JPIA wanted to ensure that SAWPA was also a party to the 
agreement as this is a pilot program created by SAWPA and they have hired NAWC to 
carry out the Cloud Seeding Program.  The purpose of this agreement is to allow cloud 
nuclei generators to be installed and operate on district property. 
 
A motion was made by Vice President Parker to approve this item as recommended by 
staff, seconded by Treasurer Aldaco, and carried on the following vote: 
 
Director Gulmahamad expressed his opposition in the approval of the agreement. 
 
Motion carried on 4-1-0-2 vote to approve Agreement No. 2023-06 with North American 
Weather Consultants, Inc. (NAWC) and the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 
(SAWPA) for Cloud Seeding Program Equipment Lease. 
 

MOVED:   Parker SECONDED:   Aldaco APPROVED: 4-1-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton 
NOES:       Gulmahamad 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg  
 

5. Ratify a Work Order with DJL Audio Visual Specialists to Replace Outdoor “Overflow” 
Speakers 
 
Facilities & Operations Manager Dave Schroeder gave a brief description of the ratification 
of the work order to include the replacement of outdoor speakers and additional cost. 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 4 
 
 

 
Vice President Parker made a motion to approve this item as recommended by staff, 
seconded by Director Layton, and carried on the following vote: 

 
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to approve the Ratification of  the Work Order with DJL 
Audio Visual Specialists to Replace Outdoor “Overflow” Speakers. 
 

MOVED:   Parker SECONDED:   Layton APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
6. Designate a Voting Representative for ACWA Elections 

 
General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the staff report stating that the General 
Manager has been the representative to vote for ACWA Elections because the ACWA 
elections were held during the November fall conference that she attended. Due to 
changes to ACWA bylaws, the elections are now online prior to the fall conference.  
Furthermore, it was explained that If the Board does not designate a representative to 
vote by the deadline of June 16, 2023, then the agency’s General Manager will be the 
authorized voter by default. 
 
Vice President Parker expressed interest in being designated the voting representative. 
 
Director Aldaco made a motion that for consistency the General Manager remain as the 
representative to vote for ACWA Elections. Because Vice President Parker expressed 
interest in being the representative, Director Aldaco withdrew the motion. 
 
A motion was made by Director Layton to designate Vice President Parker as the voting 
representative, seconded by President Ligtenberg , and carried on the following vote: 

 
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to Designate Vice President Parker as the CBWCD 
Representative for ACWA Elections. 
 

MOVED:   Layton SECONDED:   Ligtenberg APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
 
 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 5 
 
 

 
 

7. Approval of the Positions and Job Descriptions for Administrative Assistant I, Landscape 
Maintenance Worker III, and Part-Time Receptionist 

 
General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the staff report recommending the approval 
of the positions and job descriptions as recommended by the Finance and Personnel 
Committees and was available for questions.   
 
There was no further discussion from the Board. 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Aldaco to approve this item as recommended by staff, 
seconded by Director Layton, and carried on the following vote: 

 
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to approve the Positions and Job Descriptions for 
Administrative Assistant I, Landscape Maintenance Worker III, and Part-Time 
Receptionist as recommended by the Finance and Personnel Committees. 
 

MOVED:   Aldaco SECONDED:   Layton APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

8. Approve Compensation Schedule and Salary Step Chart for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
 

General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented a staff report and PowerPoint 
recommending the approval of the Compensation Schedule and Salary Step Chart for 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 as recommended by the Finance and Personnel Committees and 
was available for questions. 
 
Director Layton asked a clarifying question related to how long it takes an employee to 
move a step, and General Manager Skrzat explained that an employee is moved one step 
at a time. Director Layton recommended consideration to minimize the number of steps. 
Vice President Parker recommended consideration for an employee to move two steps at 
a time at the General Manager’s discretion. 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Aldaco to approve this item as recommended by staff, 
seconded by Director Gulmahamad, and carried on the following vote: 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 6 
 
 

Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to approve the Compensation Schedule and Salary Step 
Chart for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 as recommended by the Finance and Personnel 
Committees. 
 

MOVED:   Aldaco SECONDED:   Gulmahamad APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
9. Approve the Implementation of a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) for Fiscal Year 2023-

2024 
 

General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the staff report recommending the approval 
of the Cost-of-Living Adjustment for Fiscal Year 2023-24 as recommended by the Finance 
and Personnel Committees. 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Aldaco to approve this item as recommended by staff, 
seconded by Director Gulmahamad, and carried on the following vote: 

 
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to approve a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) for Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 as recommended by the Finance and Personnel Committees. 
 

MOVED:   Aldaco SECONDED:   Gulmahamad APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
10. Adopt the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
 

General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the staff report and explained that after the 
Board budget review session in May, suggestions were made and taken to the Finance 
Committee for further review. Further revisions were made to the proposed Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 budget as recommended by the Finance Committee; therefore, staff is 
recommending adoption of the annual budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 
 
A motion was made by Director Gulmahamad to approve this item as recommended by 
staff, seconded by Treasurer Aldaco, and carried on the following vote: 

 
 
 
 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 7 
 
 

 
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to Adopt the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024  
as recommended by the Finance Committee. 
 

MOVED:   Gulmahamad SECONDED:   Aldaco APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
 

11. Approve Amendment to Policy No. 36: Sick Leave 
 

General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the staff report recommending approval to 
amend Policy No. 36, Sick Leave, as recommended by the Personnel Committee. 
 
A motion was made by Director Layton to approve this item as recommended by staff, 
seconded by Vice President Parker, and carried on the following vote: 

 
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to approve Amendment to Policy No. 36: Sick Leave, as 
recommended by the Personnel Committee. 
 

MOVED:   Layton SECONDED:   Parker APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
12. Approve Amendment to Policy No. 38: Vacations 
 

General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the report and PowerPoint presentation 
recommending amending Policy No. 38, Vacations, as recommended by the Personnel 
Committee. Director Layton suggested possibly reducing the number of levels considered 
in the months of service. 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Aldaco to approve this item as recommended by staff, 
seconded by Vice President Parker, and carried on the following vote: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 8 
 
 

 
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to approve Amendment to Policy No. 38: Vacations as 
recommended by the Personnel Committee to be effective July 1, 2023. 
 

MOVED:   Aldaco SECONDED:   Parker APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
13. Consideration of the California CLASS Prime Fund Investment Program 

 
General Manager Elizabeth Skrzat presented the staff report and introduced Kristi Even, 
Manager at Eide Bailly, to present a PowerPoint overview of the California CLASS Prime 
Fund Investment Program. 
 
Director Gulmahamad asked Counsel McElhaney,  if he had any concerns about the three-
year stipulation. Counsel McElhaney responded that he did not at this point.  
A motion was made by Vice President Parker to amend Policies No. 18 and No. 19 to 
further consider Eide Bailly’s recommendations at the next Board meeting, seconded by 
Treasurer Aldaco, and carried on the following vote: 

  
Motion carried on 5-0-0-2 vote to direct the General Manager to amend Policies No. 18 
and No. 19 and bring them back to the Board on July 10, 2023, and to be prepared to 
open an account and transfer funds as recommended by Eide Bailly. 
 

MOVED:   Parker SECONDED:   Aldaco APPROVED: 5-0-0-2 
 

AYES:        Ligtenberg, Parker, Aldaco, Layton, Gulmahamad 
NOES:       None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:   Coker, Sonnenberg 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – None 
 
DIRECTOR ORAL REPORTS 
 
This is the time and place for the Board of Directors to report on any items of interest.  Upon 
request by an individual Director, the Board may choose to take action on any of the subject 
matters listed below. 
 
President Ligtenberg – Attended meetings as itemized in Item 3 – AB 1234 of the Agenda. 
 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 9 
 
 

Vice President Parker - Attended meetings as itemized in Item 3 – AB 1234 of the Agenda but 
stated that she had a family emergency and did not attend the Chino Hills State of The Union 
after all.  
 
Treasurer Aldaco – Attended meetings as itemized in Item 3 – AB 1234 of the Agenda. 
 
Director Layton – Attended meetings as itemized in Item 3 – AB 1234 of the Agenda. 
 
Director Coker – Attended meetings as itemized in Item 3 – AB 1234 of the Agenda.  
 
Director Gulmahamad – Attended meetings as itemized in Item 3 – AB 1234 of the Agenda.  
 
Director Sonnenberg – Attended meetings as itemized in Item 3 – AB 1234 of the Agenda with 
the exception of the Chino Basin Stakeholders BBQ on May 15th.  The Director’s report was 
amended. 
 
STAFF ORAL REPORTS 
 
General Manager/Secretary Report –  Thanked staff for the Basin Tour event. It is the best 
example of how well staff works together.  Acknowledged Dave, Billy, Dena, and Judy for all 
their efforts to make this a successful event. 
 
Board Attorney Report – None. 
 
CLOSED SESSION  
 
President Ligtenberg recessed the meeting to Closed Session at 3:45 p.m. to consider the following 
Closed Session items: 
 
14. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
KAISER Foundation Health Plan, Inc., et al. vs. Chino Basin Water Conservation District; 
and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive 
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No.: CIVDS 1933655 
 

15. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
Government Code Section 54957 
Title:  General Manager 

 
President Ligtenberg reconvened the meeting at 4:58 p.m. Board Attorney, Leland McElhaney, 
stated that there was no reportable action taken.  
 
ADJOURN 
 



 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
June 12, 2023 CC 1a Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
July 10, 2023: Regular Board Meeting                                                                                                       Page 10 
 
 

President Ligtenberg adjourned the meeting at 4:59 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting of 
the Chino Basin Water Conservation District to be held on Monday, July 10, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. at 
District Headquarters, located at 4594 San Bernardino Street, Montclair, CA 91763. 
 
      
 
            

Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
         
Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator  



CC 2 a

































S T A F F  R E P O R T  
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  CC 3a 

FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator 

SUBJECT:  AB 1234 – Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Receive and file Chino Basin Water Conservation District Director Travel, Training, and Meeting 
Report, reflecting business-related expenses incurred by the District. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. Anticipated Director attendance and associated expenses are included in the Fiscal Year 
Budget. 

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with Assembly Bill 1234 (AB 1234), effective January 1, 2006, members of the 
Board of Directors are required to provide a brief report on meetings attended at the expense of 
the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body. 

ISSUES/ANALYSIS 

In response to AB 1234, a Board of Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report has been 
created and is placed on the Board Agenda Consent Calendar monthly. It provides the required 
brief report on meetings that Board members attended in June 2023. 



Regular Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject:  AB 1234 - Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report 
Agenda Item: CC 3a, Page 2 

DATE EVENT BOARD MEMBER 
6/1/23 CBWCD Basin Tour President Ligtenberg 

Vice President Parker 
Treasurer Aldaco 
Director Gulmahamad 

6/12/23 CBWCD Regular Board Meeting President Ligtenberg 
Vice President Parker 
Treasurer Aldaco  
Directors Layton, 
Gulmahamad and Sonnenberg 

6/25/23 Ethics Training Webinar Director Gulmahamad 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

None 



S T A F F  R E P O R T  
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  CC 3b 

FROM: Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator 

SUBJECT: AB 1234 – Compensation and Reimbursement Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve compensation and reimbursement for specified Board Members for participation at the 
following events: 

DATE EVENT BOARD MEMBER 
6/1/23 Santa Ana River Enhanced Recharge Phase 1B Treasurer Aldaco 

6/2/23 IEUA Bay Delta Tour Director Gulmahamad 

6/3/23 IEUA Bay Delta Tour Director Gulmahamad 

6/7/23 Supervisor Curt Hagman’s Open House Treasurer Aldaco 

6/15/23 Chino Basin Watermaster Advisory Committee Meeting Vice President Parker 

6/16/23 Meeting with Supervisor Jesse Armendarez Vice President Parker 

6/19/23 Meeting with CVWD Kevin Kenley Vice President Parker 

6/22/23 Montclair Chamber Board Installation Ceremony Vice President Parker 
Treasurer Aldaco 
Director Gulmahamad 

6/22/23 Chino Basin Watermaster Orientation & Board Meeting Vice President Parker 

6/29/23 Three Valleys MWD Leadership Breakfast Treasurer Aldaco 
Director Gulmahamad 



Regular Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject: AB 1234 - Compensation and Reimbursement Report 
Agenda Item: CC 3b, Page 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. Anticipated Director attendance and associated expenses are included in the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 budget. 

BACKGROUND 

Per Policy 47, dated November 9, 2020, “Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and 
Ethics Training”, Exhibit A, Category C reflects the following: 

CATEGORY C – Meetings at Partner Organizations 

At the beginning of each Fiscal Year, Board Members will vote on assignments for attendance at 
meetings of each organization listed below to ensure broad, diverse, and consistent District 
representation at such events. A primary and alternate will be chosen. If the primary and 
alternate members designated are both unable to attend, another member may be later 
designated for this purpose. At events considered to be of particular importance, multiple 
directors may be authorized to attend. Compensation and reimbursement for attendance at 
Category C meetings may be approved post-attendance on the Board’s consent calendar.  

a. Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA)
b. Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts (ASBCSD)
c. California Groundwater Coalition (CGD)
d. California Special Districts Association (CDSA)
e. Cal Trust
f. Chino Basin Watermaster
g. Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD)
h. Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC)
i. Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)
j. Joint Powers Authority (JPIA)
k. LAIF
l. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)
m. Metropolitan Water District (MWD)
n. Monte Vista Water District
o. Southern California Water Committee (SCWC)
p. Southern California Storm Water Taskforce
q. Southern California Recycled Water Taskforce
r. Urban Water Institute (UWI)
s. Water Education Foundation (WEF)

Please refer to Policy No. 47 for further information. 



Regular Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject: AB 1234 - Compensation and Reimbursement Report 
Agenda Item: CC 3b, Page 3 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Director  Aldaco’ s Virtual Meetings/ Events June 2023





ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Director Aldaco Virtual Meetings/Events June 2023 

 
    

1. Chino Groundwater Basin & Sustainability Tour – June 1st (8:15 am – 1:00 p.m.) I attended the tour along 
with District staff, local officials, and business leaders.  The bus-tour began at the Headwaters of the San 
Antonio Creek making its way to District recharge basins along the route; and, wrapping up at the 
Waterwise Community Center for lunch and networking opportunities. 
 

2. Santa Ana River Enhanced Recharge Phase 1B – June 2nd  (10:30 a.m.) I attended the ceremonial 
groundbreaking of Santa Ana River Enhanced Recharge Phase 1B in Highland, CA – a collaborative project 
between San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District and the Western Municipal Water District.  
Attending the outdoor event were various dignitaries, local water industry leaders, and the project 
engineers & construction crew. Representative Pete Aguilar, 33rd Congressional District acknowledged and 
commended project participants for expanding and enhancing the recharge of the groundwater basin.  
 

3. Supervisor Curt Hagman Open House – June 7th (5:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m.)  I attended the Supervisor’s annual 
open house event held in Chino Hills.  The event featured San Bernardino County services providers, local 
fire district & Sheriff personnel, and business leaders.     
 

4. CBWCD Board Meeting – June 12th (2:00 p.m.)  Review, Discuss, Approve or Continue Board Agenda Items. 
 

5. Montclair Chamber Board Installation Ceremony – June 22nd (12:00 p.m. – 1:30 p.m.) I attended the 
Chamber event held at CBWCD.  The event recognized past Board-members and welcomed the new Board.  
The event provided an opportunity to circulate among local business leaders to learn more about their 
industry and business, and to familiarize them with our facility.       
 

6. Three Valleys MWD Leadership Breakfast – June 29th (7:30 a.m. – 9:00 a.m.)  I attended the Leadership 
Breakfast held at Mountain Meadows Golf Course in Pomona, CA.  Adel Hagekhalil, General Manager and 
CEO of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California was the guest speaker.  His presentation 
dealt with “Water in a Changing World.”  He also provided an update on the “Pure Water Southern 
California project.     

 

I was unable to attend the June 22nd Southern California Water Coalition Stormwater Taskforce meeting due to a 
scheduling conflict.  The next stormwater taskforce meeting will be held on July 27th. 

The June 26th Southern California Water Coalition Recycled Water Taskforce meeting was cancelled.  The next 
recycled water taskforce meeting will be held on July 24th.  

 

 





S T A F F  R E P O R T  
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  CC 4 

FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator 

SUBJECT:  Approve Director Attendance at the CSDA  Annual Conference and the 
ACWA Fall Conference 

RECOMMENDATION 

Review, discuss, and approve Director attendance at both the CSDA Annual Conference and the 
ACWA Fall Conference.  

BACKGROUND 

The CSDA’s Annual Conference is an opportunity to hear from experts in local government affairs, 
build partnerships, and strengthen the voice of local control. The conference is scheduled from 
Monday, August 28th – Thursday August 31st at the Marriott and the Portola Hotel in Monterey. 
Topics are listed in detail on the schedule provided in ATTACHMENT 1.  

ACWA’s Fall Conference will be held from November 28th – November 29th in Indian Wells. No 
specific information on the program itself is available at this point, but due to limited room 
availability, it is important to have the Board’s permission to book early,  ATTACHMENT 2. 

ISSUES/ANALYSIS 

If the District wants to become more involved in CSDA and ACWA and strengthen relationships 
with other special districts and water agencies locally and throughout California, it is imperative 
that several Directors attend these conferences regularly. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funds for Director attendance at conferences are budgeted at $12,000 in Acct No. 51210: 
Conference & Tour Fees.  



Regular Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject:  Approve Director Attendance at the CSDA Annual Conference and the ACWA Fall Conference 
Agenda Item: CC 3a, Page 2 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. CSDA Fall Conference Schedule
2. ACWA Fall Conference Hold the Date



10:30 a.m. -3:00 p.m. 

Q NEW! Young Professionals

}1:) Pre-Conference Tour
Elkhorn Slough Kayak Tour and 
Moss Landing Harbor District 

1:30 - 3:30 p.m. 

Certified Special District Manager 
(CSDM) Exam, Special District 
Leadership Foundation 
(optional. must be scheduled prior to conference) 

Join your fellow YPs (Young Professional staff and 
elected officials under the age of 40) for the best 
way to experience the wildlife and nature of Elkhorn 
Slough, via kayak The 1.5-hour kayak tour will take 
you to visit sea otters, harbor seals and birds up 
close. The tour of Moss Landing Harbor District will 
follow. End your pre-conference day networking 
with your fellow YPs over appetizers and drinks. 

3:45-5:J.Sp.m. 
I 

Chapter Roundtable Discussion 
(optional. no fee but must be attending the conference) 

Join CSDA board members and local chapter 
leaders from across the state to share best 
practices and discuss Issues and opportunities. 

$90 per person, includes transportation to/from the 

Convention Center, kayak excursion, and 

post-tour happy hour. 

Early registration Is encouraged. Limited to 25 attendees. 
Due to safety, the max weight Is 250 lbs. 

Q
Calling all Young Professional District 

Staff. age 40 and younger! Keep 
an eye out for special sessions and \jp a pre-conference tour especially 

JI 
suited for you. These sessions are 

noted with a VP icon. 

·� Conference offi.cially

�BEGINS! 

• 

5:15 - 7:30 p.m. 

President's Reception 
with the Exhibitors 
(all registered attendees welcome) 

Join us in the exhibit hall as we network 

with business professionals who provide 

all types of goods and services to special 

districts. Appetizers, refreshments, and 

entertainment are provided . 

ATTACHMENT 1

























ACWAt 
ABOUT MY ACY/A Q 

OUR WORK RESOURCES EVENTS NEWSROOM 

2023 Fall Conference & Expo 

ACWA conferences are the premier destination for water industry professionals to learn and connect. Program offerings include 

Statewide Issue Forums, Town Hall discussions, Region Programs and sessions covering a wide range of topics including groundwater 

management, water rates issues, crisis communications, affordable drinking water issues, municipal finance, and more. 

Specific details about this conference will be made available in the future. Please check back for updates. 

ATTACHMENT 2





 

 

 

S T A F F  R E P O R T   
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 
 

 
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: DI 5 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
    Scott Kleinrock, Conservation Programs Manager 
    Dave Schroeder, Facilities and Operations Manager 
         
SUBJECT: Approve Amendments to Contracts with the Inland Empire Utilities 

Agency (IEUA), including  Amendment 9 of the IEUA Contract 
(#460002246-009) for the Landscape Evaluations and Audit 
Programs, Amendment 10 of the IEUA Contract (#4600000861-
010) for the Residential Landscaping Program, and Amendment 4 
of the IEUA Contract (#460002827-004) for the Gardens in Every 
School Program 

  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Review, discuss and approve contracts with the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), including 
Amendment No. 9 of the IEUA Contract (#460002246-009) for Landscape Evaluation and Audit 
Program, Amendment 10 of the IEUA Contract (#4600000861-010) for the Residential 
Landscaping Program, and Amendment 4 of the IEUA Contract (460002827-004) for the Gardens 
in Every School Program. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Landscape Evaluations and Audit Program (LEAP): On December 14, 2016, the Chino Basin 
Water Conservation District (CBWCD) and Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) entered into a 
two-year Agreement for the Implementation of Landscape Audits for customer sites identified as 
potentially significant water conservation candidates within the IEUA service area, but not within 
the CBWCD service area. The agreement has allowed CBWCD to offer the popular program 
throughout the cities that it serves.  
 
IEUA has requested that the District continue the program and proposed Amendment No. 9, 
which will extend the contract timetable out to June 30, 2024, and increase the not-to-exceed 
compensation by an additional $23,538 to a total not-to-exceed contracted amount of $150,000.  
Landscape irrigation system audits are performed for commercial, industrial, institutional, multi-
family and single-family customer sites identified by the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, and Upland 



Regular Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject: Approve Amendments to Contracts with the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), 
including  Amendment 9 of the IEUA Contract (#460002246-009) for the Landscape Evaluations 
and Audit Programs, Amendment 10 of the IEUA Contract (#4600000861-010) for the Residential 
Landscaping Program, and Amendment 4 of the IEUA Contract (#460002827-004) for the Gardens 
in Every School Program 
Agenda Item: DI 5, Page 2 
 
and water agencies of Monte Vista Water District, Cucamonga Valley Water District, and Fontana 
Water Company within the District’s sphere of influence, which is contiguous with IEUA’s service 
area boundaries. The residential, single-family home program is marketed as the “Sprinkler 
Check-Up” program while the commercial program retains the LEAP Audit name. 
 
The District is responsible for scheduling appointments and performing irrigation evaluation and 
audits for participants. Upon completion of each audit, a site report is provided which includes 
observed irrigation system with photos, soil texture, percolation, and runoff issues, needed 
repair, scheduling and irrigation efficiency recommendations, a watering guide, and information 
on available landscape rebate incentives.  
 
Residential Landscaping Program: On January 19, 2011, the District entered into a contract with 
IEUA to provide workshops to retail agencies outside the District’s service area. While all but one 
of the retail agencies share territory with the District, IEUA would like to keep the option open 
for the remaining retail agency, Fontana Water Company, to participate in the program.  
 
As a part of this program, the District will send one of its horticultural or irrigation experts to the 
headquarters of the retail agency for a retail-agency sponsored workshop on a subject of their 
choosing.  
 
The tenth amendment to this contract extends the term through June 30, 2024 and increases the 
total compensation by $5,000, for a total not-to-exceed compensation of $30,000. 
 
Gardens in Every School Program: On January 6, 2020, the District entered into a contract with 
IEUA to provide services of its expert employees to design and install educational gardens in local 
schools. While both IEUA and the District have agreed that it would be best to discontinue the 
program, IEUA would like to finish work at two remaining schools that have not yet been able to 
meet the requirements to break ground. Therefore, IEUA is proposing a fourth amendment that 
will extend the term through June 30, 2024. As the District desires to be a good partner with IEUA 
on this project, staff is recommending that the Board approve the contract amendment.  
 
ISSUES & ANALYSIS 
 
It is a priority of the Board to maintain good relationships with partner agencies in the basin. The 
contract with IEUA that extends the reach of the Landscape Evaluation and Audit Program 
beyond the District’s service area and into the District’s sphere of influence is crucial for District 
operations and for the efficient marketing of the program by retail agencies. Upland and Chino 



Regular Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject: Approve Amendments to Contracts with the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), 
including  Amendment 9 of the IEUA Contract (#460002246-009) for the Landscape Evaluations 
and Audit Programs, Amendment 10 of the IEUA Contract (#4600000861-010) for the Residential 
Landscaping Program, and Amendment 4 of the IEUA Contract (#460002827-004) for the Gardens 
in Every School Program 
Agenda Item: DI 5, Page 3 
 
Hills both send information out about LEAP audits in their billing inserts and monthly magazines 
on a semi-annual basis, and each city has significant territory outside the District’s service area.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The total contracted amount could increase District income up to an additional $28,538 in FY 
2023-2024. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
1. Amendment No. 9 for Contract (#460002246-009) for the Landscape Evaluation and Audit 

Program  
2. Amendment No. 10 for Contract (#4600000861-010) for the Residential Landscaping Program 
3. Amendment No. 4 for Contract (#460002827-004) of the Gardens in Every School Program 





 
 

 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER: 460002246-009 
FOR 

IMPLEMENTATION AND COMPLETION OF LANDSCAPE AUDITS 
FOR CUSTOMER SITES CURRENTLY IDENTIFIED AS 

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT WATER CONSERVATION CANDIDATES 
WITHIN 

THE IEUA SERVICE AREA 
AMENDMENT NUMBER NINE is made and entered by and between the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and existing in the County of San 
Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred 
to as "Agency") and Chino Basin Water Conservation District, a special district organized 
and existing in the County of San Bernardino (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), and 
shall revise the contract as follows: 
 
SECTION 5, TERM, IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
An additional term of this Contract shall commence on July 1, 2023, and shall continue 
in effect through June 30, 2024, unless terminated as specified in section 20, 
(Termination for Convenience), or in the event the maximum amount of this Contract 
is exceeded as set forth in section 6.B. (Payment, Invoicing, and Compensation). 

SECTION 6 B., COMPENSATION IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 
 

B. An additional $23,538.00 will be added to the total not-to-exceed compensation 
payable to CBWCD such that CBWCD’s total compensation for services rendered 
under this Agreement, as amended, shall not exceed the aggregate sum of 
$150,000.00 for all services satisfactorily provided during the term of this Contract. 

 
ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED. 

 
WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the 
above amendment item, and in doing so have caused this document to become 
incorporated into the Contract Documents. 

 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CHINO BASIN WATER 
(A Municipal Water District): CONSERVATION DISTRICT: 

 
 

Warren T. Green  (Date)   Elizabeth Skrzat (Date) 
Manager of Contracts   General Manager      
and & Procurement  

 
 

4600002246-009 (GD) Page 1 of 1 
6/19/2023 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D1CF164C-57B5-490F-A97D-9268398E18B2

ATTACHMENT 1





 
 

 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER: 4600000861-010 
FOR 

RESIDENTIAL LANDSCAPING PROGRAM 
AMENDMENT NUMBER TEN is made and entered by and between the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and existing in the County of San 
Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred 
to as "Agency") and Chino Basin Water Conservation District, a special district organized 
and existing in the County of San Bernardino (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), and 
shall revise the contract as follows: 
 
SECTION 5, TERM, IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
An additional term of this Contract shall commence on July 1, 2023, and shall continue 
in effect through June 30, 2024, unless terminated as specified in section 20, 
(Termination for Convenience), or in the event the maximum amount of this Contract 
is exceeded as set forth in section 6.B. (Payment, Invoicing, and Compensation). 

SECTION 6, COMPENSATION IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 
 

An additional $5,000.00 will be added to the total not-to-exceed compensation payable 
to CBWCD such that CBWCD’s total compensation for services rendered under this 
Agreement, as amended, shall not exceed the aggregate sum of $30,000.00 for all 
services satisfactorily provided during the term of this Contract. 

 
ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED. 

 
WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the 
above amendment item, and in doing so have caused this document to become 
incorporated into the Contract Documents. 

 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CHINO BASIN WATER 
(A Municipal Water District): CONSERVATION DISTRICT: 

 
 

Warren T. Green  (Date)   Elizabeth Skrzat (Date) 
Manager of Contracts   General Manager      
and & Procurement  

 
 

4600000861-010 (GD) Page 1 of 1 
6/19/2023 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7DC0E220-6D3B-43E4-B0BB-AC7BE058F674

ATTACHMENT 2





 
 

 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER: 460002827-004 

FOR 
GARDEN IN EVERY SCHOOL PROGRAM SERVICES WITHIN THE 

IEUA SERVICE AREA  
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER FOUR is made and entered by and between the Inland Empire 
Utilities  Agency,  a Municipal Water District, organized and existing in the County of San 
Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred 
to as "Agency") and Chino Basin Water Conservation District, a special district organized 
and existing in the County of San Bernardino (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), and 
shall revise the contract as follows: 
 
SECTION 5, TERM, IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
An additional term of this Contract shall commence on July 1, 2023, and shall continue in 
effect through June 30, 2024, unless terminated as specified in section 20, (Termination for 
Convenience), or in the event the maximum amount of this Contract is exceeded as set forth 
in section 6 (Payment, Invoicing, and Compensation). 
 
 
 
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED. 
 
 
 
 
 

WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the 
above amendment item, and in doing so have caused this document to become 
incorporated into the Contract Documents. 

 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CHINO BASIN WATER 
(A Municipal Water District): CONSERVATION DISTRICT: 

 
 

Warren T. Green (Date)  Elizabeth Skrzat (Date) 
Manager of Contracts  General Manager       
and Procurement 

 
 
 
 

4600002827-003 (GD) Page 1 of 1 
6/22/2022 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BB04726-5030-433D-AAC2-2E3398E63018

ATTACHMENT 3



 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BB04726-5030-433D-AAC2-2E3398E63018



 

 

 

S T A F F  R E P O R T   
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 
 

 
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: DI 6 
 
FROM:  Ryan Sonnenberg, Personnel Committee Chair 
    Lee McElhaney, District Counsel 
         
SUBJECT:  Approve Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between 

the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) and Elizabeth 
Skrzat, General Manager  

   
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Review, discuss and approve Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the District 
and Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager, and authorize the Board President to execute the 
Agreement, with retroactive pay to July 1, 2023.  
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The General Manager’s employment term is based upon the current Agreement which expires 
July 1, 2025. This new contract extends the term of the employment Agreement an additional 
twenty-four (24) months from the previous contract end date of July 1, 2025 to a new contract 
end date of July 1, 2027. The Board offered the General Manager a base salary of $185,000, 
consistent with past District leadership. 
  
The Board of Directors approved a 5% COLA increase at the June 12, 2023, regular board meeting 
for all District employees. According to this agreement and to the existing agreement, all cost-of-
living adjustments apply to the General Manager’s position. The cost-of-living increase will be 
made effective January 1, 2024. 
 
ISSUES & ANALYSIS 
 
The issue as to the General Manager’s compensation and other employment terms has been 
carefully reviewed by the Board. Based upon the General Manager’s satisfactory job 
performance, it is recommended the District authorize the Board President to execute the first 
amendment to the Employment Agreement with the General Manager, in a form approved by 
District legal counsel that: provides for an extended contract termination date of July 1, 2027; 



Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject:  Approve Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the District and Elizabeth Skrzat, 
General Manager 
Agenda Item: DI 6, Page 2 
 
includes a merit increase, as indicated above, along with the 5% COLA adjustment authorized by 
the District on June 12, 2023 for all other District employees and staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The proposed new Agreement would include a 9% salary adjustment, retroactive to July 1, 2023, 
raising the General Manager’s base annual compensation from $168,371 to $185,000. The cost 
of the adjustment is accounted for in the FY 2023-2024 budget.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
1. Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Chino Basin Water Conservation 

District (District) and Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  

TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

ELIZABETH SKRZAT- GENERAL MANAGER 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of this 10th day of July, 2023 (with an 
“Effective Date” of July 1, 2023), by and between the CHINO BASIN WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, a public entity (hereinafter “DISTRICT”), and ELIZABETH 
J. SKRZAT, an individual (hereinafter “SKRZAT”), to be effective as of said date. 
DISTRICT and SKRZAT are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the 
“PARTIES.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. WHEREAS, DISTRICT desires to continue to employ SKRZAT as its 

General Manager under the conditions and terms set forth herein, and to hereby amend 
the Employment Agreement between the PARTIES executed on July 8, 2019, and 
amended in July 2021 and, again, on September 12, 2022. 

 
B. WHEREAS, SKRZAT desires to accept such employment as DISTRICT’s 

General Manager under the conditions and terms set forth herein, and agrees to: (1) 
perform such duties and functions on behalf of the DISTRICT pursuant to the applicable 
provisions of the California Water Code; (2) perform such other legally permissible and 
proper duties and functions as the DISTRICT’s Board of Directors may from time to time 
direct and assign; and (3) recommend courses of action to the DISTRICT’s Board of 
Directors which, in her professional opinion, will enhance and improve the DISTRICT. 

 
C. WHEREAS, the PARTIES agree that the conditions and terms of 

SKRZAT’s employment with the DISTRICT should be expressed by and in this written 
AGREEMENT. 

 

COVENANTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and the mutual 
conditions and promises contained herein, the PARTIES hereto agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing Recitals, and each of them, are  
hereby incorporated into this AGREEMENT by their reference as though set 
forth in full. 

 



2 
 

 
 

2. Duties and Obligations. 
 

a. General Duties.  SKRZAT shall serve as the DISTRICT’s General 
Manager. In such capacity as General Manager of DISTRICT, SKRZAT shall 
do and perform all services, acts, or things necessary or advisable to 
manage and conduct the DISTRICT’s business, including without limitation 
the hiring and firing of all employees, subject at all times to the policies and 
resolutions set by DISTRICT’s Board of Directors, and also subject to the 
consent of the DISTRICT’s Board of Directors when required by the terms of 
their agreement. 

 
b. Other Duties and Obligations.  The DISTRICT’s Board of Directors may 

establish by official action such other conditions and terms relating to 
SKRZAT’s employment as may from time to time be determined by it to be 
appropriate, provided such conditions and terms are not contrary to, or 
inconsistent with, the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the California Water 
Code, or other law.  

 
c. Restrictions on Outside Business Activities.  During the employment term, 

SKRZAT shall not directly or indirectly, either as an employee, employer, 
consultant, agent, principal, partner, stockholder, corporate officer, director, 
or in any other individual or representative capacity, engage or participate 
in any business that is in competition or in any manner whatsoever in 
conflict with the DISTRICT’s business or policies. 

 
d. Character of Services.  SKRZAT hereby agrees and represents that the 

services to be performed under the terms of their AGREEMENT are of a 
special, unique, unusual, extraordinary, and intellectual character that gives 
them a peculiar value, the loss of which cannot be reasonably or 
adequately compensated in damages in an action at law. 
 

3. Term of Employment.  Subject to negotiated extension(s) by mutual 
agreement of the PARTIES or earlier termination as provided for in Section 
11 of this AGREEMENT, SKRZAT shall be employed by the DISTRICT for a 
period of an additional Forty-eight (48) months beginning on July 1, 2023 
(“Employment Date”) and expiring Four (4) years thereafter on July 1, 2027 
(the “Expiration Date”).   
 

4. Base Salary.  During the employment term, the DISTRICT shall pay to 
SKRZAT a Base Salary of $185,000.00 per annum. Such compensation shall 
be payable in installments consistent with the DISTRICT’s pay period cycles, 



3 
 

and subject to appropriate withholdings. The Base Salary is gross 
compensation, exclusive of retirement contributions made on behalf of 
SKRZAT and the cost of any insurance or other benefits made available to 
SKRZAT. Should this AGREEMENT be terminated other than on the first 
workday of a month, the monthly compensation shall be prorated for that 
month. The Base Salary may be adjusted periodically to reflect merit 
increases. 

 
5. Automobile Allowance.  SKRZAT’s duties with the DISTRICT require that she 

have the use of an automobile at all times during the employment term. 
DISTRICT shall pay to SKRZAT a monthly automobile allowance of $600.00 
per month as of July 1, 2022, as provided within DISTRICT Policy #22, as 
may be amended from time to time, constitutes full compensation for all costs, 
depreciation, operation, maintenance and repairs, insurance, gasoline, tires 
and oil, and all other incidental expenses associated with the operation of 
SKRZAT’s personal automobile on DISTRICT business. 
 

6. Other Supplemental Benefits.  During the employment term, DISTRICT shall 
provide SKRZAT the same supplemental/fringe benefits as other employees 
of the DISTRICT, including but not limited to cost-of-living adjustments not 
less than that which is granted to other employees of the DISTRICT. All 
actions taken by DISTRICT’s Board of Directors relating to 
supplemental/fringe benefits for employees shall be considered actions 
granting the same benefits to SKRZAT. Notwithstanding the above, the 
benefits specifically granted to SKRZAT during the employment term include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 
 
a. Vacation.  SKRZAT shall be entitled to twenty (20) days of vacation 

annually by accrual (6.15 hours per pay period) per calendar year. Said 
vacation days may be accumulated up to a maximum of four hundred 
(400) hours and carried over to the next year. 
 

b. Administrative Leave. SKRZAT shall be entitled to ten (10) paid working 
days of administrative leave per calendar year. Upon the Employment 
Date, and upon January 1 of each year, the DISTRICT’s personnel 
records for SKRZAT shall be credited with ten (10) paid working days of 
“Administrative Leave.” Such administrative leave may be used at any 
time by SKRZAT, provided reasonable notice is given and provided further 
that the time-off does not conflict with the days and dates for regularly 
scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors for DISTRICT. 
Administrative leave days shall not accrue or carry over from one calendar 
year to the next. 

 



4 
 

c. Holidays.  SKRZAT shall be entitled to twelve (12) paid holidays per 
calendar year as specified by the DISTRICT. 

 
d. Sick Leave.  SKRZAT shall be entitled to ten (10) paid days of sick leave 

per calendar year; said sick days may be accumulated up to a maximum 
of twenty-two (22) days. 

 
e. Retirement Contributions.  In accordance with the California public 

Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013, the DISTRICT shall 
pay the employer contribution and SKRZAT shall pay the employee 
contribution to the California Public Employee Retirement System 
(CalPERS). 

 
f. Health, Vision and Dental Insurance Benefits.  The DISTRICT shall pay 

the ACWA/JPIA Medical Premiums for SKRZAT’s family’s health, vision 
and dental benefits. 

 
g. Professional Development Expenses.  The DISTRICT shall reimburse 

SKRZAT for eligible education expenses. 
 
7. Dues, Subscriptions, and Memberships. During the employment term, 

DISTRICT shall pay SKRZAT’s membership in the Association of California 
Water Agencies (ACWA), the American Water Works Association (AWWA), 
and/or other membership dues and subscriptions as may be approved by the 
DISTRICT’S Board of Directors as necessary for SKRZAT to maintain 
professional relationships in appropriate associations and organizations 
necessary and desirable for her continued professional growth and benefit to 
DISTRICT. 

 
8. Conference Expenses. During the employment term, SKRZAT shall be 

permitted to attend professional conferences, seminars, and/or other such 
meetings, the reasonable costs of which shall be paid by DISTRICT, in 
accordance with the adopted policy of the DISTRICT’s Board of Directors for 
conference reimbursement. 

 
9. General Expenses.  DISTRICT shall reimburse SKRZAT for necessary 

expenses incurred in the course of her day-to-day representation of 
DISTRICT. SKRZAT shall submit written documentation of expenditures 
requested for reimbursement, pursuant to established DISTRICT policies. 

 
10. Performance Evaluation.  The DISTRICT’s Board of Directors shall evaluate 

SKRZAT’s performance of employment not less than once every six (6) 
months, or more often at the discretion of the DISTRICT’s Board of Directors. 



5 
 

Such evaluations shall be used as a basis for determining whether a change 
in SKRZAT’s Base Salary as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement is 
appropriate or whether additional benefits may be awarded to SKRZAT, or 
other changes or modifications to the Agreement are appropriate or 
necessary, at DISTRICT’s discretion. Each evaluation shall include a 
discussion of goals and objectives, and SKRZAT’s job performance, as 
appropriate. In this connection, DISTRICT contemplates an in-depth 
performance evaluation and review annually, and a less formal performance 
review mid-year, at DISTRICT’s discretion. 

 
11. Termination of Agreement. 

 
a. Termination for Cause.  The DISTRICT may terminate this Agreement and 

SKRZAT’s employment with the DISTRICT at any time, by a majority vote 
of its Board of Directors, if SKRZAT commits any material act of 
dishonesty; discloses confidential information; is guilty of misconduct, 
unlawful conduct, or gross carelessness; unjustifiably neglects any duties 
under this Agreement which has an adverse effect on the DISTRICT’s 
finances, financial ability, or position in community; acts in any way that 
has an adverse effect on the DISTRICT’s reputation; or otherwise 
engages in any act or omission that is deemed by the DISTRICT’s Board 
of Directors to qualify as a ground for termination as listed in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. In the event 
that SKRZAT is terminated with cause, or that SKRZAT resigns or retires 
from employment with the DISTRICT, SKRZAT will be due an amount 
equal to all accrued and unused Vacation time and Administrative Leave 
time. 

 
b. Severance Payment.  In the event DISTRICT terminates SKRZAT’s 

employment not for cause (as specified in paragraph 11, subdivision (a) 
above, or in Exhibit “A” attached hereto), then a lump sum cash payment 
equal to six (6) months of SKRZAT’s base salary shall be paid as 
severance. 

 
12. Notices.  Any notices to be given hereunder by either PARTY to the other 

shall be in writing and may be transmitted by personal delivery or by mail, 
registered or certified, postage prepaid with return receipt requested. Notices 
delivered personally shall be deemed communicated as of actual receipt; 
mailed notices shall be deemed communicated as of date of mailing. Mailed 
notices shall be addressed to the PARTIES at the addresses appearing 
below, but each PARTY may change that address by written notice in 
accordance with this section: 
 



6 
 

 
 

To DISTRICT: Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
   4594 San Bernardino Street 
   Montclair, California 91763 
 
To SKRZAT:  Elizabeth Skrazt 
   7735 Montara Avenue 
   Rancho Cucamonga, California 91730 
 

13. Entire Agreement.  This AGREEMENT contains the entire agreement 
between the PARTIES hereto, and supersedes any and all other agreements, 
either oral or in writing, between the PARTIES hereto with respect to the 
employment of SKRZAT by DISTRICT, and contains all of the covenants and 
agreements between the PARTIES with respect to that employment in any 
manner whatsoever. Each PARTY to this Agreement acknowledges that no 
representation, inducements, promises, or agreements, orally or otherwise, 
have been made by any PARTY, or anyone acting on behalf of any PARTY, 
which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement, or 
promise not contained in this AGREEMENT shall be valid or binding on either 
PARTY. No promise, representation, warranty, or covenant not included in 
this Agreement has been or is relied on by any PARTY hereto. 
 

14. Waiver.  The failure of either PARTY to insist on strict compliance with any of 
the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement by the other PARTY 
shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant, or condition, nor shall 
any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any time or times be 
deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other 
times. 

 
15. Assignment.  This AGREEMENT is not assignable by either the DISTRICT or 

SKRZAT. 

  



7 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have executed this Agreement in 

Montclair, California, on the day and year first above written. 
 

ELIZABETH J. SKRZAT    DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_________________________   _______________________________ 
Elizabeth J. Skrzat     Mark Ligtenberg, President 

Board of Directors 
       Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
 
 
 
       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Lee McElhaney, General Counsel 

  



8 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

GROUNDS FOR TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

 

1. Incompetency, such as failure to comply with the minimum standards for General 
Manager’s position. 
 

2. Neglect of duty, such as failure to timely perform the duties required of a General 
Manager’s position. 
 

3. Addiction to or habitual use of alcoholic beverages, narcotics, or any habit-
forming drug which interferes with the performance of General Manager’s duties. 
 

4. Repeated absence without excuse. 
 

5. Conviction of a felony or any crime or conduct involving moral turpitude. 
 

6. Falsification of any DISTRICT report or record or of any report or record required 
to be or filed by General Manager. 
 

7. Breach of General Manager’s Employment Agreement. 
 

8. Failure to perform the duties of a General Manager or chief executive officer as 
specified in the Chino Basin Water Conservation District’s Articles and By-Laws, 
enabling legislation, rules and regulations, and policies and procedures; failure to 
perform the duties assigned to the General Manager from time to time by the 
Board of Directors of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District. 

  



 

 

 

S T A F F  R E P O R T   
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 
 

 
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: DI 7 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
         
SUBJECT:  Approve Participation in the Solve the Water Crisis Coalition 
 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Review, discuss and approve participation in the “Solve the Water Crisis” Coalition and instruct 
staff as to how the District should participate.  
 
BACKGROUND  
 
On April 10, 2023, Shivaji Deshmukh delivered a presentation to the Board about the Solve the 
Water Crisis Coalition, which is an effort started by local water districts to educate state officials 
and the general public about the crisis in water supply reliability caused by climate change. The 
effort speaks plainly about the direct connection between the warming planet and California’s 
changing hydrology and talks about the need for massive infrastructure investments to capture 
much more water during wet winters to store it for use during the longer, hotter, dry periods 
that follow.  
 
The effort was first started when, under the direction of his Board, Craig Miller, the General 
Manager of the Western Municipal Water District, began looking for support from other agencies 
to lobby for these investments at the state level. Currently, there are twenty-six agencies signed 
on as Board members with a financial stake in the venture and an additional fifty-one supporters, 
consisting of water agencies, cities, and industry groups. Local Board members include IEUA, 
Three Valleys, San Bernardino Valley Water District, and Jurupa Community Services District. 
Local supporters include the Cucamonga Valley Water District, Monte Vista Water District, the 
City of Ontario, and SAWPA.  
 
The Solve the Water Crisis has since put forward legislation entitled SB 366: The California Water 
for All Initiative. The bill would establish water supply targets to capture and produce enough 
water for all uses, including urban, agriculture, and the environment. The goal is to modernize 
California’s water infrastructure for a changing climate.  
 



Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2023 
Subject: Approve Participation in the Solve the Water Crisis Coalition 
Agenda Item: DI 7, Page 2 
 
ISSUES & ANALYSIS 
 
Becoming a supporter is as easy as filling out an online form. The form asks each agency which 
types of support it wants to give. These include: 
 

- Adding the organization’s logo to the website,  
- Participating in media activities, 
- Receiving updates on the water supply crisis, 
- Receiving educational content for the agency to distribute via their network, and 
- Financial support. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Giving financially is entirely optional. The District did not budget for financial support of this effort 
in the FY 24 budget, however, if the Board chooses to support the effort financially, it can be 
included in the mid-year budget modification.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
None 
 



 

 

 
S T A F F   R E P O R T  

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING 

 
 
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  DI 8 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
    Kristi Even, Eide Bailly 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve Participation in the California CLASS Prime Fund 

Investment Program and Amendments to Policy No. 18 and Policy 
No. 19 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Review, discuss, and approve participation in the California CLASS Prime Fund investment 
program, assign a dollar amount to invest, and make changes to Policy No. 18 increasing the 
number of signatories to District accounts and Policy No. 19 allowing for investments with JPAs 
serving public entities that are less than three years old. 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
California CLASS Prime Fund: The District has traditionally invested with the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF), in which the principal is backed dollar-for-dollar, as well as the CalTrust 
fund, which can yield higher returns, but does not include that guarantee. The District’s 
accounting firm, Eide Bailly, has alerted staff to a new investment fund that is available only to 
public agencies and non-profit organizations called the California Cooperative Liquid Assets 
Securities System, or California CLASS Prime Fund. It is a California Joint Powers Authority (JPA) 
created pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the California Government Code, Section 
53601. The California CLASS JPA was created on June 6, 2022 and is sponsored by the California 
Special Districts Association (CSDA) and the League of California Cities.  
 
The CLASS Prime fund is AAA rated by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s, which means that they 
have the highest principal stability. The assets have a weighted average maturity of less than 60 
days. The fund offers same-day withdrawal. 
 
As of January 12, 2023, the Daily Effective Yield in the CLASS Prime Fund was 4.55%, while the 
yield for LAIF was 2.41%. In general LAIF has longer maturity assets than CLASS and as such, LAIF 
has not been able to capitalize on rising interest rates.   



Regular Board Meeting Date: June 12, 2023 
Subject:  Approve Participation in the California CLASS Prime Fund Investment Program and Amendments 
to Policy No. 18 and Policy No. 19 
Agenda Item: DI 8, Page 2 
 
Policy No. 18: Policy No. 18 lays out signatory authorization for the District’s financial accounts. 
Changes to Policy No. 18 include adding the California CLASS Prime Fund as an account and 
adding one additional member of the Finance Committee and the Administrative Services 
Manager to the general checking and petty cash accounts. Staff has also edited the procedures 
outlined for moving funds between investment accounts and general checking accounts so that 
they better reflect the procedures used by the District.  
 
Policy No. 19: Policy No. 19 outlines the District’s investment portfolio management policies and 
procedures. Changes to the policy include adding the California CLASS Prime Fund to the list of 
investment accounts and ads an exception to the rule that an institution must be at least three 
years old if it is a joint powers authority created primarily for public sector customers and the 
staff that runs the fund have more than fifteen years of experience.  
 
ISSUES/ANALYSIS 
 
While the District’s investments in LAIF are secure, they earn very little return. Funds in CalTrust 
are less secure. The District lost principal in CalTrust during the pandemic and regained it within 
the last year. The District may be able to yield a higher return in a safer fund by moving some 
funds into the California CLASS Prime Fund.  Staff recommends at least moving funds in CalTrust 
to the CLASS Prime Fund and to consider moving a limited amount of funds from LAIF into the 
CLASS Prime Fund as well. Eide Bailly’s recommendation, included in ATTACHMENT 3, calls for 
moving the $2,388,400 in CalTrust to the CLASS Prime Fund and $4,000,000 from LAIF into the 
CLASS Prime Fund. Such a large amount may be too aggressive. Staff recommend moving 
$2,388,400 from CalTrust into the CLASS Prime Fund and about $1,000,000 from LAIF into the 
CLASS Prime Fund. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The fiscal impact of any change in investment strategy is highly variable and difficult to predict. 
However, the CLASS Prime Fund is managed more like LAIF to protect the principal and appears 
to be a safer place to invest money than CalTrust. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 
1.  California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement 
2.  CLASS Features and Benefits 
3.  Eide Bailly Recommendation 
4.  Policy No. 18 
5.  Policy No. 19 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Prime Fund Information Statement 

D   

June 17, 2022 

ATTACHMENT 1



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 2 

 

Introduction 

The purpose of this Information Statement for the California CLASS Prime Fund (Prime Fund) is to 

provide information to Participants (as defined herein) in connection with the purchase of Shares (as 

defined herein) in the Prime Fund.  This Information Statement for the Prime Fund describes certain 

provisions of the JPA Agreement (as defined herein) for the California CLASS and the Investment Policy 

for the Prime Fund.   Participants interested in the purchase of Shares in the Prime Fund should review 

the full terms of the JPA Agreement (located in the Document Center at www.californiaclass.com) and 

the Investment Policy for the Prime Fund described herein (located in the Document Center at 

www.californiaclass.com), each of which are incorporated herein by reference.  Capitalized terms not 

otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the JPA Agreement. 

The contents of this Information Statement should not be considered to be legal, tax or investment 

advice, and Participants should consult with their own counsel and advisers as to all matters concerning 

investment in the Prime Fund.  

California CLASS Prime Fund Summary 

The California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System, doing business as the California CLASS, is 

a California joint powers authority created pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the California 

Government Code (commencing with Section 6500), known as the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Act) 

and the JPA Agreement referenced below.   

The Act provides that two or more public agencies (as defined herein, Public Agencies) that have the 

authority to invest funds in their treasuries may, by agreement, jointly exercise that common power 

and create a joint powers authority separate from such Public Agencies to exercise such common power 

and to act as administrator of the agreement. Under this authority, California CLASS was created 

pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA Agreement) dated as of June 6, 2022, between 

the Founding Participants (as defined in the JPA Agreement).  

The Act authorizes a joint powers authority, such as California CLASS, to issue shares of beneficial 

interest in authorized investments to participating Public Agencies (collectively referred to herein, as 

Participants and individually, as a Participant). See “Eligible Shareholders.”  The JPA Agreement sets 

forth the terms of the investment program known as California CLASS Investment Program, including 

the establishment of Funds in which Participants purchase shares of beneficial interest issued by 

California CLASS in authorized investments that are owned by California CLASS.  The Prime Fund is one 

of the initial Funds established by the California CLASS. 

The purpose of the California CLASS is to consolidate investment activities of the Participants and 

thereby reduce duplication, take advantage of economies of scale and perform governmental functions 

more efficiently through the California CLASS Investment Program. 

http://www.californiaclass.com/
http://www.californiaclass.com/


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 3 

 

As a joint powers authority, California CLASS provides a professionally managed pooled investment 

program for Participants.  See “Investment Advisor & Administrator.”  Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, 

California CLASS is governed by a Board of Trustees and is sponsored by the California Special Districts 

Association (CSDA) and the League of California Cities (Cal Cities and together with CSDA, the 

Sponsors).  See “Board of Trustees.”   

The Shares in the California CLASS Prime Fund have not been, and are not required to be, registered 

under any federal or state securities law. The California CLASS has not been, and is not required to be, 

registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.  Accordingly, the California CLASS 

and its Prime Fund are not subject to the provisions of that Act, including the protective rules relating 

to registered money market funds and other types of mutual funds.  

Prime Fund Investment Objectives 

 

California CLASS provides a professionally managed pooled investment program for Participants. The 

general objective of the Prime Fund is to generate additional investment income for the Participants 

while maintaining safety and liquidity. The Prime Fund is managed by the California CLASS to comply 

with the requirements of California law, specifically California Government Code Section 53601.  

The Prime Fund is managed by the California CLASS to offer a safe, convenient, and daily liquid 

investment option for Participants. As described below, the investment objectives of the Prime Fund are 

to preserve principal, provide daily liquidity, earn a competitive rate of return, and maintain a stable 

Net Asset Value (NAV) of $1.00. The Prime Fund accrues net income daily and pays net income on a pro 

rata basis monthly. 

The California CLASS has established that the Prime Fund will have a maximum dollar-weighted average 

maturity (WAM) of 60 days and a maximum weighted average life (WAL) of 120 days.  The Investment 

Policy created by the California CLASS for the Prime Fund establishes the objectives, policies and 

restrictions that are designed to facilitate the achievement of these objectives.   

The Investment Advisor for the Prime Fund will seek to maintain a ‘AAAm’ rating from S&P Global Ratings 

on the Prime Fund.  According to S&P Global Ratings, a fund rated ‘AAAm’ demonstrates extremely 

strong capacity to maintain principal stability and to limit exposure to principal losses due to credit risk. 

‘AAAm’ is the highest principal stability fund rating assigned by S&P Global Ratings. 

The investment objectives of the Prime Fund in order of priority are:  

Safety: The Prime Fund is managed to emphasize the preservation of principal while maintaining a 

stable NAV of $1.00.  

Liquidity: The Prime Fund is managed to provide daily liquidity to its Participants. See above for 

description of the maximum WAM and WAL for investments in the Prime Fund.  



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 4 

 

Competitive Returns: The Prime Fund is managed to generate competitive returns while providing 

daily liquidity and stability of principal.  

No assurances can be given that the investment objectives of the Prime Fund will be achieved.  

Transparency 

The California CLASS seeks to provide transparency to Participants in the Prime Fund by allowing 

Participants to readily obtain portfolio and account information.  The California CLASS will offer dedicated 

Participant support with an easy-to-use technology platform. Historical and current performance data, 

Net Asset Value, WAM, and WAL are published and available to Participants on the California CLASS 

website. Portfolio holdings are published quarterly and are available to Participants through the 

California CLASS Client Services team on an as-needed basis. Participant breakdowns and expense ratios 

are also published and available to Participants on the California CLASS website on a quarterly basis.  

Eligible Shareholders 

Any Public Agency that has the authority to invest funds in its treasury in statutorily permitted 

investments, including but not limited to Section 53601 of the California Government Code, and meets 

the requirements described in the next paragraph is eligible to become a Participant of the California 

CLASS Investment Program and is eligible to purchase shares in the Prime Fund.   

Each Participant must be a “Public Agency”, as that term is defined in Section 6509.7 of the Act, which, 

as of the date of this Information Statement, is defined as "the federal government or any federal 

department or agency, this state, another state or any state department or agency, a county, county 

board of education, county superintendent of schools, city, public corporation, public district, or regional 

transportation commission of the State of California or another state, a federally recognized Indian tribe, 

or any joint powers authority formed pursuant to this article by any of these agencies," and includes "a 

nonprofit corporation whose membership is confined to public agencies or public officials."  Each 

Participant must also be a political subdivision of a state, or an agency, authority, or instrumentality of 

the United States, a state of any political subdivision of a state. 

Prime Fund Eligible Investments 

Funds in the Prime Fund are required to be invested by the Investment Advisor in investments permitted 

by California law, specifically California Government Code Section 53601, and will be made in accordance 

with the Investment Policy established by the California CLASS for the Prime Fund. As required by 

California law, funds in the Prime Fund will be invested by the Investment Advisor in accordance with 

the prudent investor standard of the California Government Code.  



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 5 

 

While the Investment Policy established by the California CLASS for the Prime Fund covers the eligible 

investments and their maximum maturity, maximum portfolio allocation, maximum per issuer allocation 

and minimum credit quality in greater detail, the following types of investments are eligible for inclusion 

in the Prime Fund: 

• U.S. Government and agency obligations 

• Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Government and agency obligations 

• Registered warrants or treasury notes of the state of California 

• Bonds, notes, warrants, or other obligations of a local agency in the state of California 

• Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states 

• Bankers’ acceptances 

• Prime commercial paper and asset-backed commercial paper 

• Negotiable certificates of deposit 

• Corporate notes 

• Asset-backed securities 

• U.S. dollar denominated senior unsecured obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the 

International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation or Inter-

American Development Bank  

• Money market mutual funds 

The Investment Policy for the Prime Fund also contains certain investment restrictions on investments 

in the Prime Fund. 

As set forth in Section 53601 of the California Government Code, the legislative body of a local agency 

having moneys in a sinking fund or moneys in its treasury not required for the immediate needs of the 

local agency may invest any portion of the money that it deems wise or expedient in the investments 

described in Section 53601.  However, the California Government Code limits the amount of surplus 

money of a local agency that may be invested in such investments.  Each Participant is responsible for 

monitoring the aggregate amount of its investments in any of these types of investments to ensure its 

own compliance with the California Government Code.  None of the California CLASS, the Administrator, 

the Investment Advisor, the Custodian or any other agents of the California CLASS shall be responsible 

for such monitoring or compliance.   

Each Participant, by its investment in the Prime Fund, is certifying that it is legally authorized to make 

such investment.  Participants should consult with their legal counsel and/or advisors regarding the 

legality of investment funds in the Prime Fund. 

Shares; Interests of Participants  

The JPA Agreement provides that the beneficial interests of the Participants in the assets of the Prime 

Fund and the earnings thereon are divided into “Shares.”  “Shares” means the unit used to denominate 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 6 

 

and measure the respective pro rata beneficial interests of the Participants in a Fund within the California 

CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund.  As required by Section 6509.7 of the Act, each 

Share shall represent an equal proportionate interest in the Investment Property within a Fund, including 

the Prime Fund. The JPA Agreement provides that the number of Shares that may be used to measure 

and represent the proportionate allocation of beneficial interests among the Participants in a Fund, 

including the Prime Fund, is unlimited. All Shares in a Fund, including the Prime Fund, shall be of one 

class representing equal distribution, liquidation, and other rights. The beneficial interests measured by 

the Shares shall not entitle a Participant to preference, preemptive, appraisal, conversion, or exchange 

rights of any kind with respect to the California CLASS Investment Program or the Investment Property 

held in the applicable Fund, including the Prime Fund. Title to the Investment Property held in the 

applicable Fund, including the Prime Fund, of every description is vested in the California CLASS. The 

Participants shall have no interest in the Investment Property held in the applicable Fund, including the 

Prime Fund, other than the beneficial interests conferred hereby and measured by their Shares, and 

they shall have no right to call for any partition or division of any property, profits, rights, or interests 

of the California CLASS. 

In its discretion, the California CLASS may from time to time allocate Shares in addition to the then 

allocated Shares to such Participant for such amount and such type of consideration (including without 

limitation income from the investment of Investment Property held in the applicable Fund, including the 

Prime Fund) at such time(s) (including without limitation each Business Day in accordance with the 

maintenance of a constant net asset value per Shares as set forth in the JPA Agreement for constant 

net asset value Funds, such as the Prime Fund), and on such terms as the California CLASS may deem 

best. In connection with any allocation of Shares, the California CLASS may allocate fractional Shares. 

From time to time, the California CLASS may adjust the total number of Shares allocated without thereby 

changing the proportionate beneficial interests in the Investment Property held in the applicable Fund, 

including the Prime Fund. Reductions or increases in the number of allocated Shares may be made in 

order to maintain a constant net asset value per Share for constant net asset value Funds, such as the 

Prime Fund. Shares shall be allocated and redeemed as one hundredths (1/100ths) of a Share or any 

multiple thereof. 

Investment Risks  

Participants should specifically consider the following risks before deciding to purchase Shares of the 

Prime Fund. The following summary does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive of all risk factors.  

Interest Rate Risks  

The prices of the fixed-income securities in the Prime Fund will rise and fall in response to changes in 

the interest rates paid by similar securities. Generally, when interest rates rise, prices of fixed-income 

securities fall. However, market factors, such as demand for particular fixed-income securities, may 

cause the price of certain fixed-income securities to fall while the price of other securities rise or remain 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 7 

 

unchanged. Interest rate changes have a greater effect on the price of fixed-income securities with 

longer maturities. The Investment Advisor will seek to manage this risk by purchasing short-term 

securities.  

Credit Risks  

Credit risk is the possibility that an issuer of a fixed-income security held in the Prime Fund will default 

on the security by failing to pay interest or principal when due. If an issuer defaults, Participants in the 

Prime Fund will lose money. The Investment Advisor will seek to manage this risk by purchasing high-

quality securities as determined by one or more Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings Organizations 

and/or the Investment Advisor’s credit research team.  The Investment Policy for the Prime Fund 

contains a description of the minimum credit quality for each category of eligible investment in the Prime 

Fund. 

Stable Net Asset Value Risks  

Although the Prime Fund is managed to maintain a stable NAV of $1.00 per Share, there is no guarantee 

that it will be able to do so.  

Investment Not Insured or Guaranteed 

An investment in the Prime Fund is neither insured nor guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation or any other government agency. 

Board of Trustees  

Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, the management of California CLASS is governed by a Board of Trustees 

(Board). The Board supervises the California CLASS and its affairs and acts as the liaison between the 

Participants, the Custodian, the Administrator, the Investment Advisor and all service providers.  

CSDA and Cal Cities are sponsors of the California CLASS. The governing bodies of CSDA and Cal Cities 

each appoint two (2) Trustees who are either elected, appointed, or staff from a California CLASS 

Participant which is also a CSDA or Cal Cities member; or, staff from CSDA and Cal Cities. One seat on 

the Board shall be a Participant that is appointed by a majority vote of the Board. 

Initially, the number of Trustees shall be five (5) voting Trustees. The Board may expand the 

membership of the Board and set initial terms for each additional Trustee.  The Board approved the 

Investment Policy for the Prime Fund and may approve amendments to such Investment Policy from 

time to time.  Upon the Board’s approval of any amendment to the Investment Policy for the Prime 

Fund, the amended Investment Policy will be posted to the website of California CLASS. 

See www.californiaclass.com for a description of the current Trustees and officers of the California 

CLASS. 

http://www.californiaclass.com/


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 8 

 

Investment Advisor & Administrator 

Pursuant to an agreement with the California CLASS, Public Trust Advisors, LLC (Public Trust) serves as 

the Investment Advisor and Administrator for California CLASS Investment Program.  

As Investment Advisor, Public Trust provides investment services to the California CLASS, including the 

Prime Fund. Public Trust is an investment advisory firm headquartered in Denver, Colorado with offices 

in Los Angeles, California. Public Trust is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an 

investment advisor under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.  

As Administrator, Public Trust services all Participant accounts in the California CLASS Investment 

Program, including all Participant accounts in the Prime Fund, determines and allocates income of the 

California CLASS Investment Program, provides certain written confirmation of the investment and 

withdrawal of funds by Participants, provides administrative personnel and facilities to the California 

CLASS, determines the NAV of the Prime Fund on a daily basis, and performs all related administrative 

services for California CLASS. At least quarterly, the Administrator provides the Board with a detailed 

evaluation of the performance of the California CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, 

based upon a number of factors. This evaluation includes a comparative analysis of the investment 

results of the California CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, in relation to industry 

standards such as the performance of comparable money market mutual funds and various indexes of 

money market securities.  

Custodian  

Pursuant to an agreement with the California CLASS, U.S. Bank, N.A. serves as Custodian for California 

CLASS Investment Program.  

As Custodian, U.S. Bank, N.A. acts as directed custodian for the California CLASS Investment Program, 

including the Prime Fund, and serves, in accordance with California law, as the depository in connection 

with the direct investment and withdrawal mechanisms of California CLASS Investment Program.  U.S. 

Bank, N.A. does not participate in the investment decision making process of the California CLASS 

Investment Program.  

The Custodian shall hold the Investment Property (excluding cash, which is not held by the Custodian), 

in its capacity as Custodian on behalf of California CLASS. Such Investment Property shall be custodial 

property of the Custodian and shall not be, or be deemed to be, an asset of the Custodian.  

Within fifteen (15) days after the end of each month, the Custodian shall send statements providing the 

closing balance in the Account at the end of such month and the transactions performed in the Account 

during such month to the Administrator and the California CLASS. 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 9 

 

Independent Auditors  

An independent certified public accounting firm, CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, has been engaged to audit the 

annual financial statements of the California CLASS. The audit will contain statements of assets and 

liabilities, of operations, and of changes in net assets. The opinion of the independent certified public 

accountant on such financial statements is based on an examination of the books and records of 

California CLASS made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The fiscal 

year of the California CLASS ends each March 31.   

How to Become a Participant  

See “Eligible Shareholder” to determine if you are eligible to be a Participant in the California CLASS 

Investment Program.  Any prospective Participants seeking to purchase Shares in the Prime Fund should 

review the JPA Agreement, this Information Statement for the Prime Fund, and the Investment Policy 

for the Prime Fund and then simply complete the California CLASS Registration Packet found in the 

document center of the California CLASS website(located in the Document Center at 

www.californiaclass.com).  Please email all completed forms to clientservices@californiaclass.com.   

There is no limit on the number of subaccounts that can be opened by a Participant. The Administrator 

will notify the prospective Participant of its approval of the Registration Forms and the account 

number(s) assigned. The Administrator reserves the right to reject any Registration in its discretion. 

Investment in the Prime Fund may be effectuated through the California CLASS Participant Portal. 

Secure online access will be available to Participants with respect to their accounts. Information with 

respect to the Prime Fund, including daily yield, up-to-date account information, and a transaction 

history will be available online. Confirmations of each contribution (purchase of Shares) and withdrawal 

(redemption of Shares) of funds will be available online to a Participant within one business day of the 

transaction.  

Purchase of Shares; Investments 

Payments by the Participant to the California CLASS, and the crediting of Shares resulting therefrom, 

are referred to herein as “contributions” for convenience. Participants may purchase Shares in the Prime 

Fund by Automated Clearing House (ACH) transfer or wire transfer from the Participant to the Custodian, 

as described in the Investment Procedures set forth below. The California CLASS does not charge a fee 

for receipt of wire contributions. However, a Participant’s bank may charge a fee for wiring funds. 

There is no maximum or minimum amount that must be invested in the Prime Fund nor is there any 

maximum or minimum limitations on the aggregate amount of the investment funds that any Participant 

may have invested at any one time with California CLASS. 

http://www.californiaclass.com/
mailto:clientservices@californiaclass.com


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 10 

 

Investment Procedures  

1. The Participant shall provide a recorded call or send a written notice to the Administrator indicating 

the amount to be invested in the Prime Fund and indicating which Account of the Prime Fund the 

investment is to be made. The Participant shall instruct its bank depository to wire or electronically 

transfer Investment Funds to the applicable Account at the Custodian for the purchase of investments 

to be held by the Custodian in such Account.  

2. The Administrator shall receive the notice described in (1) from the Participant.  

3. Investments received by the Custodian by 11:00 a.m. PT will be used to purchase Shares in the Prime 

Fund.  

4. If Investment Funds for which notification of investment has been given are not received by the end 

of the business day on which such notification is given, the Administrator shall deduct the value of such 

Investment Funds (including any earning income) from the Participant's balance if previously credited.  

5. The Participant is prohibited from requesting payments from amounts credited to its balance in the 

Prime Fund until such Investment Funds are received by the Custodian from the Participant.   

These Investment Procedures may be amended from time-to-time pursuant to the JPA Agreement 

provided, however, the Administrator will only change the times set forth above after consulting with 

the Custodian. 

Redemptions of Shares; Withdrawals; Transfers 

Payments by the California CLASS to Participants, and the reduction of Shares resulting therefrom, are 

referred to herein as “redemptions” for convenience. Redemptions of Shares from the Prime Fund may 

be made via ACH or wire transfer from the Custodian to the Participant, as described in the Payment 

Procedures set forth below. Shares in the Prime Fund will be redeemed in the amount of the withdrawal 

assuming a NAV of $1.00 per Share. 

There is no maximum or minimum amount that must be invested in the Prime Fund nor is there any 

maximum or minimum limitations on the aggregate amount of the investment funds that any Participant 

may have invested at any one time with California CLASS.  

Each Participant, by its investment in any Fund, including the Prime Fund, agrees that the California 

CLASS may temporarily suspend the right of redemption or postpone the date of payment for redeemed 

Shares for the whole or any part of any period: (i) during which trading in securities generally on the 

New York Stock Exchange or the American Stock Exchange or over-the-counter market shall have been 

suspended or minimum prices or maximum daily charges shall have been established on such exchange 

or market; (ii) if a general banking moratorium shall have been declared by Federal, state, or the State 

of New York or State of California authorities or during a suspension of payments by banks in the State 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 11 

 

of California; (iii) during which there shall have occurred any state of war or national emergency; (iv) 

during which any financial emergency or other crisis the effect of which on the financial markets of the 

United States is such as to make it impracticable (a) to dispose of the Investment Property because of 

the substantial losses that might be incurred or (b) to determine the Investment Property Value in 

accordance with the Valuation Procedures.  The Administrator shall determine, on behalf of California 

CLASS, when an event occurs that would entitle the Custodian to temporarily suspend or postpone a 

Participant’s right of redemption. Participants should refer to the JPA Agreement for additional detail.  

Transfers among the Prime Fund and another Fund within the California CLASS Investment Program 

will be considered a withdrawal from one Fund and a contribution to another subject to the 

requirements described in this Information Statement. 

Payment Procedures 

1. The Participant shall provide a recorded call or send a written notice to the Administrator indicating 

the amount requested to be paid (redeemed) and shall specify from which Account of the Prime Fund 

the payment is to be made.  

2. The Participant shall notify the Administrator in writing of the payee of the amount requested, 

which may be the Participant, and include any wire, electronic transfer, or other payment instructions. 

Such payee must be listed on the list of approved payees that has been provided by the Participant to 

the Administrator in advance of the payment.  

3. The Administrator shall receive the notice described in (1) and the information required in (2) from 

the Participant. Requests for redemptions from Accounts of the Prime Fund with pre-established wire 

instructions will be honored on a same-day basis if received by the Administrator prior to 11:00 a.m. 

PT. Special wire transfer requests are available only with written documentation.  

4. The Participant may only request payments of that portion of its balance that represents 

Investment Funds and its proportional share of the income from the Investment Property that, in all 

cases, is actually held by the Custodian in the applicable Account in the Prime Fund.  

These Payment Procedures may be amended from time-to-time pursuant to the JPA Agreement 

provided, however, that the Administrator will only change the times set forth above after consulting 

with the Custodian. 

Portfolio Transactions  

Subject to the general supervision of the California CLASS, the Investment Advisor is responsible for 

placing the orders for the purchase and sale of securities within the Prime Fund, referred to herein as 

“portfolio transactions” for convenience. The portfolio transactions within the California CLASS 

Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, occur only with broker dealers acting as principals except 

for commercial paper transactions that may be placed directly with the issuers. Although California 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 12 

 

CLASS does not ordinarily seek but nonetheless may make profits through short-term trading, the 

Investment Advisor may, on behalf of the California CLASS, dispose of any portfolio investment prior to 

its maturity if such disposition is advisable. The weighted average maturity and weighted average life 

limits applicable to the Prime Fund is expected to result in high portfolio turnover. However, since 

brokerage commissions are not typically paid on the types of investments in which the Prime Fund is 

likely to invest, any turnover resulting from such investments should not adversely affect the NAV of 

the Prime Fund.   

The Investment Advisor seeks to obtain the best net price and the most favorable execution of portfolio 

transactions. Portfolio transactions will not occur between the Investment Advisor and Administrator, 

the Custodian, any Trustee, or any affiliate, officer, director, employee, or agent of any of them.  

Valuation of Prime Fund Shares 

The Administrator determines the NAV of the Shares of the Prime Fund at least daily on a mark-to-

market basis. The NAV per Share of the Prime Fund is computed by dividing the total value of the 

securities and other assets of the Prime Fund, less any liabilities, by the total outstanding Shares of the 

Prime Fund. Expenses and fees of the California CLASS accrue daily and are included within liabilities 

for the NAV calculation. 

The result of this calculation is a share value rounded to the nearest penny. Accordingly, the price at 

which Shares of the Prime Fund are sold and redeemed will not reflect unrealized gains or losses on 

securities within the Prime Fund that amount to less than $.005 per Share. The Administrator will 

endeavor to minimize the amount of such gains or losses. However, if unrealized gains or losses on 

securities within the Prime Fund should exceed $.005 per Share, the Prime Fund’s NAV per Share will 

change from $1.00 or be maintained at $1.00 per Share by retention of earnings or the reduction on a 

pro rata basis of each Participant’s Shares in the Prime Fund in the event of losses or by a pro rata 

distribution to each Participant in the event of gains.  

While it is a fundamental objective of the Prime Fund to maintain a NAV of $1.00 per Share, there can 

be no guarantee that the NAV will not deviate from $1.00 per Share. The NAV per Share of the Prime 

Fund may be affected by general changes in interest rates resulting in increases or decreases in the 

value of the securities in the Prime Fund. The fair market value of the Prime Fund’s securities will vary 

inversely to changes in prevailing interest rates. If a security is held to maturity, no loss or gain is 

normally realized as a result of these fluctuations.  

1. Portfolio Valuation  

At least daily, the Investment Property Value within the Prime Fund shall be determined on a mark-to-

market basis as follows: (a) securities for which market quotations are readily available are valued at 

the most recent bid price or yield equivalent as obtained from one or more market makers for such 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 13 

 

securities or a third-party pricing source; (2) all other securities and assets are valued at fair market 

value in good faith. 

2. Amendment  

These Valuation Procedures may be amended from time-to-time pursuant to the JPA Agreement.  

Use of Fair Value Measurement 

California CLASS follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Topic 

(ASC) 820 Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure for financial reporting purposes. ASC 820 defines fair 

value, establishes a single framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value 

measurement.  

Local government investment pools (LGIP) may select different methods of determining the value of 

assets held within the portfolio for reporting purposes. The two most common methods used to report 

on the assets of the portfolio are mark-to-market—frequently referred to as “fair value” or “fair market 

value”—and amortized cost. California CLASS utilizes the mark-to-market methodology. This involves 

obtaining prices for securities in the portfolio every business day. The mark-to-market methodology 

provides Participants with a high degree of transparency with respect to the underlying market values 

of the Prime Fund’s securities.  

The mark-to-market methodology (FASB) can and should be contrasted with the amortized cost method 

that some LGIPs utilize. LGIPs that follow GASB 79 are following the amortized cost method, which 

entails adjusting the value of the portfolio’s securities on a daily basis by a predetermined amount from 

the purchase date to the maturity date. While the amortized cost method produces very reliable and 

predictable asset valuations, that predetermined value may or may not accurately reflect the market 

value of the security.  

Computation of Yields  

A daily and seven-day average yield for the Prime Fund will be provided by the Administrator in published 

reports and information on www.californiaclass.com.  To obtain the daily yield, a daily income 

distribution per share factor is first calculated. That factor is the net income for that day divided by the 

number of settled shares outstanding. The factor is then multiplied by 365 (366 in a leap year) to 

produce the daily yield. The seven-day average yield is obtained by averaging the daily yield for seven 

identified, consecutive days. From time-to-time, the Administrator may also quote the yield for the 

Prime Fund on other basis for the information of the Participants.  

Participants should note that the yields quoted should not be considered a representation of the future 

yield of the Prime Fund since the yield is not fixed. Actual yields for the Prime Fund will depend not only 

http://www.californiaclass.com/


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 14 

 

on the type, quality, and maturities of the investments held by the Prime Fund and the changes in 

interest rates for such investments but also on changes in the Prime Fund’s expenses during the period.  

Yield information may be useful in reviewing the performance of the Prime Fund and for providing a 

basis for comparison with other investment alternatives.  

Income Allocations  

All net income of the Prime Fund is determined as of the close of business each day (and at such other 

times as the Board may determine) and is credited pro rata to each Participant’s Account within the 

Prime Fund at month-end. The Prime Fund accrues net income on a daily basis and pays interest income 

on a monthly basis. 

Net income that has thus accrued to the Participants is converted as of the close of business at month-

end into additional Shares that are thereafter held in each Participant’s account. Reinvested net income 

is converted into full and fractional shares at the rate of one share for each one dollar credited. Net 

income for the Prime Fund consists of (1) all accrued interest income on assets of the Prime Fund plus 

(2) accretion of discount less (3) amortization of premium and less (4) accrued expenses.  

Retained Reserves 

Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, the Investment Advisor may retain from earnings and profits in the 

California CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, amounts deemed necessary to pay the 

debts and expenses of the California CLASS, as well as to meet other obligations of the California CLASS. 

The Investment Advisor possesses the power to establish from earnings and profits such reasonable 

reserves as they believe may be necessary or desirable.  Realized capital gains or losses shall be 

distributed in a timely and equitable manner as determined by the Investment Advisor. More information 

about retained reserves is available in the JPA Agreement, including the detailed accounting that the 

Investment Advisor provides to the Board on a quarterly basis on amounts deemed necessary or 

desirable by the Investment Advisor for retained reserves. 

California CLASS Expenses 

Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, Public Trust Advisors, as Administrator, for the California CLASS 

Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, shall receive a fee as described below in “California 

CLASS Fees.”  The Administrator’s fee shall be an Investment Property Liability. From its fee, the 

Administrator shall pay the following costs and expenses: the Investment Advisor’s fee set forth in the 

Investment Advisor Agreement, the Custodian’s fee set forth in the Custody Agreement, the costs of 

third parties retained by the Administrator to render investment advice pursuant to the Administrator 

Agreement, the fees to the Sponsors, marketing expenses, all custodial and securities clearance 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 15 

 

transaction charges, the cost of valuing the Investment Property, the cost of obtaining a rating or 

ratings, if any, the cost of other expenses agreed to by the Administrator and the California CLASS, all 

Investment Property record-keeping expenses, the cost of preparing monthly and annual reports, the 

expense of outside auditors required pursuant to the Administrator Agreement (but only if the 

Administrator selects such auditors), the fees of the counsel to the Administrator and/or the counsel to 

the California CLASS, the cost of Meetings of the Board, insurance costs and the costs of Participant 

surveys and mailings. Periodically, the Administrator shall provide a detailed accounting of such 

expenses to the Trustees. 

California CLASS Fees 

For the performance of its obligations as Administrator in the Administrator Agreement, the 

Administrator will charge a fee from the Investment Property Value (the daily fee). This daily fee will 

accrue on a daily basis and be paid monthly in arrears and prorated for any portion of the month in 

which the Administrator Agreement is in effect. The daily fee shall be calculated as follows: the 

Investment Property Value is multiplied by the applicable fee rate and is divided by 365 or 366 days in 

the event of a leap year to equal the daily fee accrual. The Investment Property Value shall be based 

on the prior day’s net assets. For weekend days and holidays, the net assets for the previous business 

day will be utilized for the calculation of fees. The applicable fee rate shall be determined by the 

Administrator monthly on the first business day of each month and shall be at an annual rate equal to 

up to fifteen (15) basis points. The Administrator is authorized to debit the applicable monthly fee 

amount within five (5) business days after the end of such month. All payment records and invoices will 

be presented at each subsequent meeting of the Board. Fees may be waived or abated at any time, or 

from time-to-time, at the sole discretion of the Administrator. Any such waived fees may be restored 

by the written agreement of the California CLASS.  

Reports to Participants  

Annually 

Audited financial statements of the California CLASS will be provided annually.  See “Independent 

Auditors” above.    

Monthly  

Within 15 days after the end of each month, the Administrator shall prepare and submit, or make 

available, to each Participant a statement disclosing any activity and a closing balance, including the 

number of Shares, in each of its accounts for such month.  

 

 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 16 

 

Upon Request 

The Administrator, upon the request of a Participant, shall furnish to the Participant a statement of 

such Participant’s balance as of the date of such request subject only to account activity on such date.  



Par t icipant s 
benefit  from t he following:

- Same-day availability of funds in 
Prime Fund (11:00 a.m. PT cut-off)

- Deposits by wire or ACH 

- Ratings of 'AAAm' & 'AAAf/S1'

- Prime fund transacts at stable NAV

- Portfolio securit ies 
marked-to-market daily
 

- Secure online access for transact ions 
and account statements

- No withdrawal not ices for Prime Fund

- Part icipant-to-Part icipant 
transact ions

- Interest accrues daily and pays 
monthly

- No maximum contribut ions

- No minimum balance requirements

- No transact ion fees*

- Annual audit  conducted by 
independent audit ing firm**   

- Dedicated client service 
representat ives available via phone 
or email on any business day

*You may incur fees associated with wires and/or ACH 
transact ions by your bank, but there will be no transact ion 
fees charged from California CLASS for such transact ions. 
**External audits may not catch all instances of accounting 
errors and do not provide an absolute guarantee of 
accuracy.

California Cooperat ive Liquid Assets Securit ies System 

What  is California CLASS?
California Cooperat ive Liquid Assets Securit ies System (California 
CLASS) is a joint exercise of powers ent ity authorized under 
Sect ion 6509.7, California Government Code. California CLASS is 
a pooled investment opt ion that was created via a joint exercise of 
powers agreement by and among  California public agencies. 
California CLASS offers public agencies a convenient method for 
invest ing in highly liquid, investment-grade securit ies carefully 
selected to opt imize interest earnings while maximizing safety 
and liquidity. The California CLASS Prime and Enhanced Cash 
funds offer public agencies the opportunity to strengthen and 
diversify their cash management programs in accordance with the 
safety, liquidity, and yield hierarchy that provides the framework 
for the investment of public funds.

How is it  governed and managed?
California CLASS is overseen and governed by a Board of 
Trustees. The Board is made up of public agency finance 
professionals who part icipate in California CLASS and are 
members of the Joint Powers Authority (JPA). The Board of 
Trustees has entered into an Investment Advisor and 
Administrator Agreement with Public Trust Advisors, LLC. Public 
Trust is responsible to the Board for all program investment and 
administrat ive act ivit ies as well as many of the services provided 
on behalf of the Part icipants.

How can we part icipate?
Enrolling in California CLASS is simple. Public agencies may 
become Part icipants simply by filling out the Part icipant 
Registrat ion Form that can be found in the document center on 
the California CLASS website. Public agencies may submit the 
completed registrat ion packet to California CLASS Client Services 
for processing at clientservices@californiaclass.com. To obtain 
account forms and fund documents, visit  
www.californiaclass.com/document-center/ .

T (877) 930-5213  | F (877) 930-5241 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com  

Endorsed By:

www.calcit ies.org www.csda.net

https://www.flclass.com/join-flclass
https://www.flclass.com/join-flclass
http://www.colotrust.com
mailto:clientservices@colotrust.com
mailto:clientservices@colotrust.com
ATTACHMENT 2



What  are the object ives of California CLASS?

Have Quest ions? Contact us or visit  www.californiaclass.com for more information.

Safety
The primary investment object ive of the California 
CLASS Prime fund is preservat ion of principal. Both 
California CLASS portfolios are managed by a team of 
investment professionals who are solely focused on the 
management of public funds nat ionwide. The custodian 
for California CLASS is U.S. Bank, N.A.

Liquidity
When you invest in the California CLASS Prime fund, 
you have access to your funds on any business day. You 
must not ify California CLASS of your funds transact ion 
requests by 11:00 a.m. PT via the internet or phone. 
There are no withdrawal not ices for the daily-liquid 
California CLASS Prime fund. Enhanced Cash is a 
variable NAV fund that provides next-day liquidity and a 
one-day not ificat ion of withdrawal. 

Compet it ive Returns

California CLASS strives to provide competit ive returns 
while adhering to the object ives of safety and liquidity. 
Part icipants benefit  from the  investment expert ise and 
inst itut ional knowledge provided by the team of Public 
Trust professionals. Portfolio performance is 
strengthened by the extensive knowledge of California 
public agency cash flows that the Public Trust team 
possesses.

Ease of Use
To make cash management streamlined and efficient, 
California CLASS includes many features that make it  
easy to access account information and simplify record 
keeping. Part icipants can transact on any business day 
using the California CLASS phone number (877) 
930-5213, fax number (877) 930-5214, email 
clientservices@californiaclass.com or via the California 
CLASS Online Transact ion Portal at 
www.californiaclass.com. 

Flexibility
You may establish mult iple California CLASS 
subaccounts. You will receive comprehensive monthly 
statements that show all of your transact ion act ivity, 
interest accruals, and rate summaries. These 
statements have been specifically designed to facilitate 
public sector fund accounting and to establish a clear 
accounting and audit  t rail for your records.

Legality
California CLASS only invests in securit ies permitted by 
California State Code Sect ion 53601; permitted 
investments are further restricted to those approved by 
the Board of Trustees as set forth in the California 
CLASS Investment Policies.   

Any financial and/or investment decision should be made only after considerable research, considerat ion, and involvement with an experienced professional engaged for the specific purpose. Past  
performance is not  an indicat ion of fut ure performance. Any f inancial and/or invest ment  decision may incur losses. Please see the Information Statement for further details on the fee calculat ion 
and other key aspects about California CLASS. California CLASS Prime is rated 'AAAm' by S&P Global Ratings. A ?AAAm? rat ing by S&P Global Ratings is obtained after S&P evaluates a number of 
factors including credit  quality, market price exposure, and management. For a full descript ion on rat ing methodology, please visit  www.spglobal.com. California CLASS Enhanced Cash is rated by 
'AAAf/S1' by FitchRatings. The ?AAAf? rat ing is Fitch?s opinion on the overall credit  profile within a fixed-income fund/portfolio and indicates the highest underlying credit  quality of the pool?s 
investments. The ?S1? volat ility rat ing is Fitch?s opinion on the relat ive sensit ivity of a portfolio?s total return and/or net asset value to assumed changes in credit  spreads and interest rates. The ?S1? 
volat ility rat ing indicates that the fund possesses a low sensit ivity to market risks. For a full descript ion on rat ing methodology, please visit  www.fitchrat ings.com. Ratings are subject to change and do 
not remove credit  risk. 

T (877) 930-5213  | F (877) 930-5241 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com  

Bob Shull 
Director, Investment Services 
bob.shull@californiaclass.com
(213) 378-2070

Laura Glenn, CFA® 
Senior Director, Investment Services 
laura.glenn@californiaclass.com 
(404) 822-8287

Brent  Turner
Regional Director of Strategy   
brent.turner@californiaclass.com 
(303) 999-8190

Rodrigo Bet t ini
Director, Investment Services 
rodrigo.bett ini@californiaclass.com
(813) 820-0703

http://www.colotrust.com
http://www.colotrust.com
http://www.wyomingclass.com
http://www.wyomingclass.com
http://www.wyomingclass.com
http://www.spglobal.com/
http://www.fitchratings.com/
http://www.colotrust.com
mailto:clientservices@colotrust.com
mailto:clientservices@colotrust.com
mailto:brent.turner@colotrust.com
mailto:brent.turner@colotrust.com


Chino Basin Water Conservation District
Cash and Investments
Prepared 7/3/2023

Current District Cash and Investments
 Balance

5/31/2023 
 Annual 

Yield 
30-Day
Yield

 Daily 
Yield  % of Portfolio 

Unrestricted 
Wells Fargo (General) 664,243$          0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 4.90%
Wells Fargo (Petty Cash) 1,001 0.06% 0.06% 0.06% 0.01%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 10,421,500       2.05% 2.99% 3.10% 76.92%
CalTRUST Investment Short-Term Fund 2,388,400         2.69% 4.08% NA 17.63%

Total Unrestricted 13,475,144$     99.46%

Restricted
CERBT (Pension Trust, Strategy 2)* 73,200               0.28% -3.40% NA 0.54%

Total Restricted 73,200$             0.54%

Total Current District Cash and Investments 13,548,344$     100.00%

Proposed District Cash and Investments
 Balance

5/31/2023 
 Annual 

Yield 
30-Day
Yield

 Daily 
Yield  % of Portfolio 

Unrestricted 
Wells Fargo (General) 664,243$          0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 4.90%
Wells Fargo (Petty Cash) 1,001 0.06% 0.06% 0.06% 0.01%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 6,421,500         2.05% 2.99% 3.10% 47.40%
CalTRUST Investment - 2.69% 4.08% NA 0.00%
CLASS Prime Fund* 6,388,400         4.83% 5.15% 5.19% 47.15%

Total Unrestricted 13,475,144$     99.46%

Restricted
CERBT (Pension Trust, Strategy 2)* 73,200               0.28% -3.40% NA 0.54%

Total Restricted 73,200$             0.54%

Total Proposed District Cash and Investments 13,548,344$     100.00%

*Notes
*Figure in gold for CERBT represents the July 2022 - March 2023 Fiscal Year actual yield to date.
*Figure in green for CLASS prime fund represents the YTD July 2022 - May 2023 Fiscal year to date yield.

Recommended Changes:

1. Close account with CalTRUST and invest all funds (approximately $2,388,400 ) in CLASS Prime Fund.

2. Transfer $4,000,000  from LAIF  and invest in CLASS Prime Fund.

ATTACHMENT 3





Policy No.:   18       ATTACHMENT 4 
Issue No.:   16 
Effective Date: 07/05/2023  
Subject:    Signatory Authorization for District Financial Accounts 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

 
Policy No. 18 – Signatory Authorization for District Financial Accounts  
 
Purpose:  To establish the rights and responsibilities of District officers and employees 
as signatories on District accounts, and to protect District funds. 
 
Policy/Procedure: 
This policy will cover the following District funds and accounts: 
 
1. General checking account and any “Special Bank Accounts” that may from time to 

time be authorized by the Board of Directors 
2. Petty Cash checking account 
3. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
4. Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST), a joint powers authority offering a pooled 

investment program for local agencies in California 
5. California CLASS Prime Fund, a joint powers authority offering a pooled investment 

program for public agencies and non-profit organizations in California 
 
General Checking Account 
The general checking account requires two signatures in any combination upon each 
check disbursement. The signatories may be assigned or reassigned by the Board of 
Director’s.  The signatories at this time are as follows: 
 

* President of the Board of Directors 
* Vice President of the Board of Directors 
* Treasurer of the Board of Directors 
* One Additional Member of the Finance Committee 
* General Manager** 
* Administrative Services Manager**  

 
Upon authorization by the Board of Directors, In order to ensure a stable cash flow for 
District business, set fund amounts may be transferred into the General Checking 
Account from the LAIF, CalTRUST, or the California CLASS Prime Fund funds by order 
of the General Manager, with later approval of the Treasurer of the Board of Directors.  
 
**At no time shall a check be signed by two staff members. Checks must be signed by 
either one staff member and one board member, or by two board members. 
 
Petty Cash Account 
The Petty Cash account requires one authorized signature, at this time consisting of: 

* General Manager 
* Administrative Services Manager 



Policy No.:   18       ATTACHMENT 4 
Issue No.:   16 
Effective Date: 07/05/2023  
Subject:    Signatory Authorization for District Financial Accounts 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

* President of the Board of Directors 
* Vice President of the Board of Directors 
* Treasurer of the Board of Directors 
* One additional member of the Finance Committee 

 
The intent of the petty cash fund is to allow the speedy purchase of relatively small items, 
generally totaling under $150.00, although exceptions to this rule may arise upon 
occasion in response to an urgent situation. Upon authorization by the Board of Directors, 
set fund amounts may be transferred into the Petty Cash fund from the General Checking 
Account by order of the General Manager. 
 
LAIF, CalTRUST and California CLASS Prime Funds 
The General Manager may transfer funds into the General Checking Account from LAIF, 
CalTRUST, or the California CLASS Prime Funds to cover Board authorized 
expenditures.  In the event the General Manager, the Board President or the Board 
Treasurer has approved a LAIF, CalTRUST, or California CLASS Prime Fund withdrawal 
and/or deposit amount but is unavailable to do the transfer for payroll or accounts payable 
purposes, the Administrative Services Manager, with written or email approval from the 
General Manager, Board President or Board Treasurer, is authorized as a representative 
for the District to process the transfer(s). 
 
The General Manager may transfer funds into the LAIF, CalTRUST, or California CLASS 
Prime Funds without previous Board approval. All transfers are recorded and later 
reviewed and approved by the Treasurer of the Board of Directors.  
 
 
Revision: 
Issue No. 14 – 08-08-16 (Amend to reflect changes in titles and positions and remove 
names) 
Issue No. 15 – 11-09-20 (Amend to reflect changes in titles and positions)  
Issue No. 16 – 07-10-23 – Added the Administrative Services Manager and One 

Additional Member of the Finance Committee as signatories on District 
accounts and added language pertaining to the California CLASS Prime 
Fund. 

 



Policy No.:   19                                               ATTACHMENT 5 
Issue No.:   11 
Effective Date:  07/05/23 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

Policy No. 19 – Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 
Purpose: To outline the policies for maximizing the efficiency of the District’s investment 
portfolio, for prudent investment of the District’s funds, and to provide guidelines for the 
selection of suitable investments. The objective is the enhancement of the economic 
status of the District while simultaneously protecting its funds.  
 
The District’s investment portfolio policies and procedures are designed to accurately 
monitor and forecast expenditures and revenues, thus enabling the District to invest funds 
to the fullest extent possible. The District shall attempt to obtain the highest yield, provided 
that all investments meet the criteria established for safety and liquidity. 
 
The investment policies and procedures of the District are based upon Federal, State, 
and Local law, and prudent money management. The primary goals of these policies are: 
 

1. To ensure compliance with all Federal, State, and Local laws governing the 
investment of monies under the control of the District’s Treasurer or General 
Manager.  
 

2. To protect the principal monies entrusted to this office. 
 

3. To generate the maximum amount of investment income within the parameters 
of this statement of investment policy, and to establish the guidelines for 
suitable investments. 

 
Policy/Procedure:  
All monies entrusted to the District will be pooled in an actively managed portfolio. The 
investment portfolio will be referred to as the “Fund” throughout the remainder of this 
document.  
 
A.  Safety of Principal: 

 
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the District. Each investment transaction 
shall seek to preserve the principal of the portfolio, whether from institutional default, 
broker-dealer default, or erosion of market value of securities. The District shall seek 
to preserve principal by mitigating the two types of risk: credit risk and market risk. 

 
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner which first seeks to ensure the 
preservation of principal in the Fund. The Treasurer or General Manager shall evaluate 
or cause to have evaluated each potential investment, seeking both quality in the issuer 
and the underlying security or collateral, and shall diversify the portfolio to reduce 
exposure or loss.  Pursuant to section 53653 of the California Government Code, to the 



Policy No.:   19                                               ATTACHMENT 5 
Issue No.:   11 
Effective Date:  07/05/23 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

extent local conditions warrant, a Treasurer may waive security for such funds as are 
insured pursuant to Federal law; therefore, to the extent local conditions warrant and in 
accord with the provisions of Government Code section 53653, the District’s Treasurer 
is authorized to waive security for funds deposited or invested with Banks, Credit 
Unions, and Savings and Loan Associations to the extent such deposited or invested 
funds are fully insured pursuant to Federal law. 
 

1. Credit Risk. Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer of 
a security, shall be mitigated by investing only in very safe institutions, and by 
diversifying the Fund so that the failure of any one issuer would not unduly 
harm the District’s cash flow. 

 
a. For the purposes of establishing credit risk, a very safe institution is defined 

as a Bank, Credit Union, or Savings and Loan institution having net worth 
to net asset ratio higher than 3.0% and experiencing positive earnings 
records. 

 
b. For investments within Banks, Credit Unions, and Savings and Loan 

institutions having less than a 3.0% net worth to asset ratio or one that is 
experiencing a negative earnings record, the Treasurer shall limit deposits 
to $100,000. 

 
c. District investments with the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) may not, 

by state regulation, exceed the limit set by the Local Agency Investment 
Fund. District investments with the CalTRUST program may not exceed the 
limit which may be set from time to time by the CalTRUST Joint Powers 
Authority Board of Trustees.  Until otherwise directed by the Board of 
Directors, the Local Agency Investment Fund shall be the primary 
depository for District Funds. 

 
d. Cash will be invested only in FDIC, NCUA, or FSLIC insured banking, credit 

union, or savings and loan institutions or in fully collateralized certificates of 
deposits. Excepting the LAIF, and CalTRUST, and California CLASS Prime 
Fund accounts, no more than 10 percent of the District portfolio, not to 
exceed $300,000 shall be invested in any one institution or in certificates of 
deposits.  The bank, credit union, savings and loan institution must meet 
the following criteria to be considered by the District: 

 
The District will not invest any more than $100,000 in any institution less 
than three years old. An exception to this rule can be made if the institution 
is a joint powers authority created primarily for public sector customers and 



Policy No.:   19                                               ATTACHMENT 5 
Issue No.:   11 
Effective Date:  07/05/23 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

if each of the members of the senior staff of the institution that runs the fund 
has at least 5 years of experience in managing similar investments. 

 
The bank, credit union, or savings and loan institution must be located in 
California. 

 
e. A General checking account shall be maintained for amounts under 

$300,000. During emergency situations this amount may be temporarily 
exceeded for up to a seven-day period. The minimum account balance 
should be $5,000 in order to meet unanticipated cash requirements. 

 
2. Market Risk. The risk of market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the 

general level of interest rates shall be mitigated by limiting the weighted 
average maturity of the District’s Fund to five years. 

 
NOTE: Five years is the maximum maturity allowed by law for 

individual investments, unless specifically permitted the 
Board of Directors for a longer time. The preferred weighted 
average maturity should generally be set at a time less than 
five years in order to accommodate the District’s cash flow 
needs. 

 
B.  Liquidity: 
 

Liquidity is the second-most important objective. Investments shall be made whose 
maturity date is compatible with cash flow requirements, and which can be easily and 
rapidly converted into cash without substantial loss of value.  

 
C.  Return on Investment: 
 

Investments shall be undertaken to produce an acceptable rate of return after first 
considering safety of principal and liquidity.  

  
D. Prohibited Investments:   

 
Pursuant to Government Code section 53601.6, as may be amended from time to time, 
the District is prohibited from investing in inverse floaters, range notes, or mortgage-
derived interest-only strips. The District also is prohibited from investing funds in any 
security that could result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity; however, this 
limitation shall not apply to investments in shares of beneficial interest issued by 
diversified management companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 



Policy No.:   19                                               ATTACHMENT 5 
Issue No.:   11 
Effective Date:  07/05/23 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 80a-1, and following) that are authorized for investment pursuant 
to subdivision (k) of Section 53601 of the California Government Code. 

 
NOTE: If any of these prohibited investments were purchased prior to enactment 

of SB 866, the District may hold them until maturity. 
 
Government Code section 53637 prohibits the legislative body of a local agency and the 
treasurer or other official of the local agency having legal custody of the money from 
investing local agency funds, or funds in custody of the local agency, in negotiable 
certificates of deposit issued by a credit union if a member of the legislative body of the 
local agency, or any person with investment decision making authority in the 
administrative office, General Manager’s office, budget office, auditor-controller’s office, 
or treasurer’s office of the local agency also serves on the board of directors, or any 
committee appointed by the Board of Directors, or the credit committee or the supervisory 
committee of the credit union issuing the negotiable certificates of deposit. 
 
E.  Reporting Requirements (Government Code section 53646): 

 
NOTE:   If a local agency has placed all of its investments in the Local Agency 

Investment Fund, created by Sections 16429.1 through 16429.3 of the 
Government Code, or in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured 
accounts in a bank, in National Credit Union Association insured credit 
union accounts, or in Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation 
accounts in savings and loan associations, or any combination of these, 
the Treasurer or manager may comply with Government Code Section 
53646 by supplying to the District’s Board of Directors, General Manager, 
and auditor the most recent statement(s) received by the District. For any 
other combination of investments, the requirements below apply. 

 
* The report must be given at least quarterly, within 45 days after 

quarter-end. However, the Board of Directors may elect to require 
the report, as specified in Government Code section 53646, to be 
made on a monthly basis instead of quarterly.  

 
* Contents of the report must include: 

1. The type of investment 
2. The issuer 
3. The date of maturity par and dollar amount invested in all 

securities 
4. A description of any of the District Funds, investments, or 

programs that are under management 



Policy No.: 19   ATTACHMENT 5 
Issue No.:  11 
Effective Date: 07/05/23 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  

5. The market value weighted average, investments and monies
held by the agency as of the date of the report. This includes
any Funds, investments or programs, including loans that are
under the management of contracted parties.

6. The report must also state compliance of the Fund with the
statement of investment policy, or the manner in which the
Fund is not in compliance.

7. Any additional information required by the Board of Directors.

* Include a statement denoting the ability of the District to meet its
expenditure requirements for the next six months, or an explanation
as to why sufficient money will not or may not be available. A
subsidiary ledger of investments may be used in accordance with
accepted accounting practices.

* The Treasurer or General Manager shall report whatever additional
information or data may be required by the Board of Directors.

F. Policy Review:

State Law requires that Special Districts perform an annual review of their investment
policy for compliance with changes in the law. The District will endeavor to perform
this annually, in May of each year.

G. Delegation of Authority:
Implementation of this policy is the responsibility of the District Treasurer. By law, the
Board of Directors is empowered to only delegate investment authority to the
Treasurer for a one-year period, renewable annually subject to review. When the
Treasurer has investment-related questions, he or she may seek the advice of the
Finance Committee. Actions taken by the Finance Committee must be in general
compliance with this policy. The Finance Committee shall assist the Treasurer in
making the annual policy review required by State law, and make recommendations
for changes to said policy. Neither the Treasurer nor the Finance Committee are
empowered to make investment decisions which are not in accordance with this
policy.

Under the direction and supervision of the Treasurer, the daily administration of this
policy is hereby delegated to the General Manager and Administrative Assistant.

H. Brokers and Dealers:
Brokers and dealers shall only be utilized by approval of the Board of Directors. When
Brokers and Dealers are used, the scope of their services and details pertaining to



Policy No.:   19                                               ATTACHMENT 5 
Issue No.:   11 
Effective Date:  07/05/23 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

investment strategies, objectives, and guidelines shall be covered by separate Board 
resolution.  

 
      As relates to the money invested by the District with “Smith Barney,” the              
      directive of the Board of Directors is for the District to utilize a “buy and    hold  
      until maturity” strategy.  As each of these current investments mature, the  
      District’s staff shall reinvest the money in the District’s LAIF account and/or the 
 District’s CalTRUST account. 
 
I. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest: 
 Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 

business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, 
or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Employees 
and investment officials shall disclose any material financial interests in financial 
institutions that conduct business within this jurisdiction, and they shall further disclose 
any large personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the District, particularly with regard to the time of purchases and sales, 
on their appropriate statement of economic interests forms to be filed in a manner 
consistent with the District’s Conflict of Interest Code, and shall be disqualified from 
participating in the decision-making process regarding District investments and the 
implementation of this policy. 

 
Revision: 
Issue No. 11 – 7-10-23 – Added California CLASS Prime Fund Account and added 
language to pertaining to exception to the District investing in any institution less than 
three years old. 
 



 

 

 
S T A F F   R E P O R T  

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING 

 
 
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  DI 9 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve Amendment to Policy No. 30-1  
 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Review, discuss, and approve amendment to Policy No. 30-1, specifying overtime policy and 
procedures for employees working a traditional 40-hour workweek as well as part-time 
employees, temporary employees, and interns. 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
The District recently moved from the PayChex system to the Employer on the GO system run by 
Eide Bailly. The move to a new system prompted a review of the District’s overtime policies, 
during which staff realized that Policy No. 30-1, which deals with overtime, only explicitly lays out 
how overtime is handled for employees who work the 9-80 alternative schedule. There is no 
explicit mention of overtime for employees working full time on a traditional 40-hour work week 
or for part-time employees, temporary employees, or interns.  Per state law, anyone who works 
more than eight hours per day who is not working an alternative schedule must be paid overtime 
for those additional hours. It is crucial that Policy No. 30-1 be updated to reflect that practice.  
 
ISSUES/ANALYSIS 
 

It is important that the District has an overtime policy that pertains to all employees and is 
consistent with state law. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
1.  Policy No. 30-1 





ATTACHMENT 1 

Policy No. 30-1 – Overtime-Alternative Work Week 
 
Purpose: To establish the guidelines under which overtime is defined and administered 
by the District. 
 
Policy/Procedure: 
This policy shall apply to full-time permanent employees, currently scheduled to work a 
traditional 40 hour per week work schedule, as well as the full-time permanent employees 
working an alternate work week, part-time employees, temporary employees, and paid 
interns.  
 
1. Traditional Work Schedule 

 
a. Employees working a traditional 40-hour work week consisting of five eight-hour 

days will receive overtime pay (time and a half) after eight hours of work on a given 
day. Double time is owed for all work performed in excess of 12 hours per day or 
in excess of eight hours worked on an unscheduled workday. 

 
b. Part-time employees, temporary employees, and interns will receive overtime pay 

(time and a half) after eight hours of work on a given day. Double time is owed for 
all work performed in excess of 12 hours per day or in excess of eight hours on an 
unscheduled work day. 

 
2. Alternative Work Week: CBWCD has determined through communications with its 

employees that the 9/80 work week would be the Alternative Work Week most 
agreeable to its employees, and therefore to the District.  In a scheduled two-week, 
80 hour pay period, employees who request an alternative work week and receive 
approval for it will work eight nine-hour days and one eight-hour day and have one 
eight-hour work day off every two weeks. 

 
a. Employees on an Alternative Work Week earn overtime differently than those who 

are entitled to overtime pay after only eight hours per day.  Employees on 
Alternative Work Weeks are owed overtime (time and a half) for all work performed 
in any workday beyond the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week 
agreement, up to 12 hours a day, or for all work performed in any week beyond 
the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week agreement for that week.  
Thus, the employee will be paid time and a half for hours worked in excess of nine 
hours a day on a scheduled nine-hour workday or in excess of eight hours on that 
employee’s scheduled eight-hour day or for all work performed in any week in 
excess of the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week agreement for 
that week.  Double time is owed for all work performed in excess of 12 hours per 
day, or in excess of eight hours on an unscheduled workday. 

 
3. Overtime Approval: Overtime must be required approved by the General Manager, 

and will be computed up to the nearest one-quarter (one-quarter) hour. For example, 
if an employee works one hour and five minutes, he or she shall enter one hour and 



Policy No.:   30-1        
Issue No.:   3 
Effective Date:   TBD 
Subject:    Overtime – Alternative Work Week 
 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Policy and Procedures Manual 
Page |  
 

fifteen minutes on their timecard. All employees will be expected to work overtime 
under specific circumstances which shall be defined by the General Manager. Refusal 
to work, after requested to do so under those circumstances, will be grounds for 
disciplinary action. 
 

4. Overtime Criteria. Management and employees exempt from the overtime 
requirement of the Fair Labor Standards Act will not be entitled to overtime 
compensation except in special cases where the Board of Directors determines that 
the circumstances warrant extra compensation. In such circumstances, the Board of 
Directors, shall, in its sole discretion, determine the amount of such compensation to 
be given. 

 
5. Hours Worked. Overtime is calculated based on hours actually worked. Hours worked 

is defined as the time during which an employee is subject to the control of an 
employer. Examples of some of the common exclusions from overtime pay are when 
an employee receives holiday, sick, or vacation paid time off and worked on an 
unscheduled workday. For example, when an employee regularly works Monday-
Friday but receives holiday pay on Monday and works on a Saturday. In such a case, 
the time upon which the holiday pay is based does not count as hours worked for the 
purposes of determining overtime because no work was performed; therefore, regular 
wages would be paid for the hours worked on Saturday.  

 

Revision: 

Issue No. 1 – 03-09-09 (Original Policy governing only employees working an alternate work week) 
Issue No. 2 – 07/10/23 (Change to include provisions for tradi�onal work week, part �me, temporary 
employees, and interns)  



 

 

 
S T A F F   R E P O R T  

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING 

 
 
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  DI 10 
 
FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Select a Candidate for the Southern California Network Seat C of 

the 2024-2026 California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board 
of Directors 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review, discuss, and select a candidate for the Southern California 
Network Seat C of the 2024-2026 California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of 
Directors. 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
Each of California Special Districts Association (CSDA) six networks has three elected 
representative seats on the CSDA Board. As a Regular Member in good standing, the District is 
entitled to vote for one (1) person to represent our Network in Seat C for the 2024-2026 Term.  
 
ISSUES/ANALYSIS 
 

The Board may vote for one (1) of the candidates and authorize the Board Secretary to submit 
the District’s ballot electronically. The deadline to submit the District ballot is July 17, 2023 at 5 
p.m. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
1. a.  Al Nederhood, Municipal Water District of Orange County Candidate Statement 

b.  Al Nederhood Letter of Support 
c.  Al Nederhood 2023 CSDA Board Candidate Information Sheet 

2. a.  Arlene Schafer, Costa Mesa Sanitary District Candidate Statement 
b.  Arlene Schafer 2023 CSDA Board Candidate Information Sheet 

3.    a.  John Skerbelis, Rubidoux Community Services District  





Al Nederhood 
MWDOC Board 

Elect to CSDA Board 
 Southern Network 

Seat C 

6 Years as Elected Official for Special 
Districts, Yorba Linda Water District 
(YLWD) & Municipal Water District of 
Orange County (MWDOC) 

LAFCO dues revision through 
Independent Special Districts of Orange 
County. First revision after 20 years 
saving small districts thousands of dollars 
annually. 

Heli-Hydrant sponsor, supporter creating 
nations first system (helicopter enabled 
fire suppression in wild-fire zones) 

President of a Non-Profit 

30 years of Senior Management 
Leadership positions with nationally 
known firms 

President of an Educational Institution 
with $100 million in revenue, 500 staff 
and 5000 students. 

BA, Long Beach State 
MA, Central Michigan University 

Retired, Married for 50+ years, 4 kids and 
12 grandkids 

Here’s a sample of my history of measurable change 
created by active questioning and positive decision 
making based on the facts.  

Seven years ago, I identified, initiated, and transformed an 
outdated LAFCO dues system on behalf of special districts 
in Orange County.  The dues structure was developed in 
2002 by ISDOC to fulfill their legal responsibility, but 
over time, it resulted in small districts subsidizing the 
large districts.  
After two years of working with my fellow Special 
Districts, the new dues structure was unanimously 
approved and implemented. This effort created a balanced 
and proportionate LAFCO dues structure for Special 
Districts throughout the county, saving smaller districts 
with smaller operating budgets thousands of dollars each 
year. 

As a Board Member for Yorba Linda Water District we 
investigated and implemented the nation’s first Heli-
hydrant to modernize fighting wild fires.  YLWD now has 
two heli-hydrants with a third in development with 
Metropolitan Water District. 

I would appreciate your Board voting for me, Al 
Nederhood. 

If you want to contact me: 
Al Nederhood 
MWDOC, Director Division One 
anederhood@mwdoc.com 
C. 714-261-3964

ATTACHMENT 1a





   MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Street Address: 

18700 Ward Street 

Fountain Valley, California 92708 

Mailing Address: 

P.O. Box 20895 

Fountain Valley, CA 92728-0895 

(714) 963-3058

Fax: (714) 964-9389 

www.mwdoc.com 

Megan Yoo Schneider, P.E. 

President 

Bob McVicker, P.E., D.WRE 

Vice President 

Randall Crane, Ph.D. 

Director 

Larry D. Dick 

Director 

Al Nederhood 

Director 

Karl W. Seckel, P.E. 

Director 

Jeffery M. Thomas 

Director 

Harvey De La Torre 

Interim General Manager 

MEMBER AGENCIES 

City of Brea 

City of Buena Park 

East Orange County Water District 

El Toro Water District 

Emerald Bay Service District 

City of Fountain Valley 

City of Garden Grove 

Golden State Water Co. 

City of Huntington Beach 

Irvine Ranch Water District 

Laguna Beach County Water District 

City of La Habra 

City of La Palma 

Mesa Water District 

Moulton Niguel Water District 

City of Newport Beach 

City of Orange 

Orange County Water District 

City of San Clemente 

Santa Margarita Water District 

City of Seal Beach 

Serrano Water District 

South Coast Water District 

Trabuco Canyon Water District 

City of Tustin 

City of Westminster 

Yorba Linda Water District 

May 26, 2023 

Re:  Support for Director Al Nederhood, CSDA Board of Directors, Southern Network 
Seat C 

On behalf of the Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC), it is my pleasure 
to share our unanimous support for Director Al Nederhood for the CSDA Board of 
Directors, Southern Network Seat C.  MWDOC is a wholesale water supplier serving 3.2 
million residents through 27 retail water agencies, making Director Nederhood uniquely 
qualified.  

Director Nederhood brings seven years of Special District board experience as well as 
decades as a senior manager in the private sector to his candidacy. He willingly listens to 
constituents and fellow board members, and then works hard to create effective 
solutions. He actively engages with our local CSDA chapter, as well as CSDA and ACWA 
events.   

Attached you will find a candidate’s statement highlighting some of Director 
Nederhood’s accomplishments. You will notice he has demonstrated his innovative 
thinking on behalf of special districts of all sizes which would make him an asset to the 
CSDA Board of Directors, bringing a fresh perspective to long-term practices.  

I encourage you to share this information with your Board of Directors and that you 
strongly consider supporting Director Al Nederhood for the CSDA Board of Directors, 
Southern Network Seat C for the 2023 election.  Electronic voting begins on June 5 and 
will continue until July 14.  Please do not hesitate to contact me or Director Nederhood 
personally should you have any questions.  His contact information can be found on the 
attached candidate’s statement.  Thank you for your consideration.   

Sincerely, 

Megan Yoo Schneider, M.S., P.E. 
Board President 

ATTACHMENT 1b



2023 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET The following information MUST accompany your nomination form 

and Resolution/minute order:  

Name: __Albert M. Nederhood________________________________________________________  

District/Company: __Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC)_____________________  

Title: __Director                 _____________________________________________________________ 

Elected/Appointed/Staff: ___Elected____________________________________________________  

Length of Service with District: _2 years with MWDOC, 4 years with Yorba Linda Water District as elected Board 

Member__________  

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events, workshops, conferences, Governance

Academy, etc.): I have attended nearly 100% of the public meetings for ISDOC (Independent Special Districts of Orange

County) over the last 6 years.  I spent 2 years working with Jim Fisler and Saundra Jacobs (both past ISDOC Presidents) to

successfully revise the Special District dues structure created in 2000 to more accurately and fairly reflect revenue and

dues payable to LAFCO._____________________________________________________________________________

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations (CSAC, ACWA, League, etc.):  Over the last 6

years I have attended most of the conferences held by the Urban Water Institute, ACWA, the Colorado River Water Users,

as well as many Metropolitan Water District Board meetings._________   ___________________________

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association of Governments, etc.): _For the 2 years that it took to

initiate, revise and successfully change the LAFCO dues required of Special Districts in Orange County, I attended virtually

all of the monthly OC-LAFCO meetings._________________________________________________________________

4. List civic organization involvement: _I was elected twice and served on the Yorba Linda Water District Board, a Special

District.____________________________________________________________________________

**Candidate Statement – Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to submit a candidate statement of no 

more than 300 words in length. Any statements received in the CSDA office after the nomination deadlines will not be 

included with the ballot. Page 133 of 173 2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS NOMINATION FORM  

Al Nederhood Candidate Statement: 

I was introduced to CSDA in 2016 as a newly elected Director to the Yorba Linda Water District. I attended the CSDA 

training for new directors which opened my eyes to the responsibilities and value of Special Districts.  I made friends at 

that training that continue on today including former YLWD Director Brooke Jones and current Director John Sears of East 

Orange County Water District.  

Before getting involved in water issues later in life, I began my professional career as a high school teacher. I moved on to 

the business world including Xerox and 7-Eleven Stores as a Merchandise Manager.  I was the college president for a 

variety of vocational colleges and ended my career as the President of a non-profit in Santa Ana. 

After my 2016 election I attended ISDOC and LAFCO meetings. I became aware of the dues structure created by ISDOC in 

2000.  This structure, in place for 20 years, no longer represented the realities of revenue and dues.  Many smaller 

revenue Special Districts had disproportionately large dues.  By working with Director Jim Fisler from Mesa Water and 

Director Saundra Jacobs of Santa Margarita Water District, we revised the 20-year-old structure into a more equitable 

dues arrangement that saved smaller districts tens of thousands of dollars each year. 



As an elected director to two different Special Districts, first YLWD and now MWDOC, I’ve experienced first-hand the vital 

role that Special Districts have in California life, infrastructure and politics.   

As the elected representative for the Southern Network, it is my commitment to work hard to support Special Districts, 

provide active, collegial representation focused on key issues, and listen to Special District members. 

I would appreciate your vote to be the CSDA representative for the Southern Network, one of 18 members on the CSDA 

Board.  Thank you! 

Name of Candidate: _Albert Nederhood___________________________________________  

District: __Municipal Water  District of Orange County (MWDOC)_________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _18700 Ward Street Fountain Valley CA 92708  

Network: ___Southern Network__________________________________________ (see map)  

Telephone:___714-261-3964______________________________________________________ 

(PLEASE BE SURE THE PHONE NUMBER IS ONE WHERE WE CAN REACH THE CANDIDATE) 

Fax:__________________________________________________________________  

E-mail: __anederhood@mwdoc.com_______________________________________________

Nominated by (optional): _Board of Directors for MWDOC______________________________ 

Return this form, a Board resolution/minute action supporting the candidate, and Candidate Information Sheet by mail 

or email to: CSDA Attn: Amber Phelen 1112 I Street, Suite 200 Sacramento, CA 95814 (877) 924-2732 amberp@csda.net 

DEADLINE FOR RECEIVING NOMINATIONS: Northern, Sierra, Coastal and Southern Networks: April 6, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 

Bay Area and Central Networks: April 17, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 



Al Nederhood 
MWDOC Board 

Elect to CSDA Board 

 Southern Network 

Seat C 

Professional & Personal 

History 

6 Years as Elected Official for Special 

Districts, Yorba Linda Water District 

(YLWD) & Municipal Water District of 

Orange County (MWDOC) 

LAFCO dues revision through 

Independent Special Districts of Orange 

County. First revision after 20 years 

saving small districts thousands of dollars 

annually. 

Heli-Hydrant sponsor, supporter creating 

nations first system (helicopter enabled 

fire suppression in wild-fire zones) 

President of a Non-Profit 

30 years of Senior Management 

Leadership positions with nationally 

known firms 

President of an Educational Institution 

with $100 million in revenue, 500 staff 

and 5000 students. 

BA, Long Beach State 

MA, Central Michigan University 

Retired, Married for 50+ years, 4 kids and 

12 grandkids 

Why should you vote for Al Nederhood? 

Here’s a sample of my history of measurable change 

created by active questioning and positive decision 

making based on the facts.  

Seven years ago, I identified, initiated, and transformed an 

outdated LAFCO dues system on behalf of special districts 

in Orange County.  The dues structure was developed in 

2002 by ISDOC to fulfill their legal responsibility, but 

over time, it resulted in small districts subsidizing the 

large districts.  

After two years of working with my fellow Special 

Districts, the new dues structure was unanimously 

approved and implemented. This effort created a balanced 

and proportionate LAFCO dues structure for Special 

Districts throughout the county, saving smaller districts 

with smaller operating budgets thousands of dollars each 

year. 

As a Board Member for Yorba Linda Water District we 

investigated and implemented the nation’s first Heli-

hydrant to modernize fighting wild fires.  YLWD now has 

two heli-hydrants with a third in development with 

Metropolitan Water District. 

I would appreciate your Board voting for me, Al 

Nederhood. 

If you want to contact me: 
Al Nederhood 

MWDOC, Director Division One 

anederhood@mwdoc.com 

C. 714-261-3964

mailto:anederhood@mwdoc.com






2023 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET The following informa�on MUST accompany your nomina�on form 

and Resolu�on/minute order: 

Name: __Albert M. Nederhood________________________________________________________ 

District/Company: __Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC)_____________________ 

Title: __Director                 _____________________________________________________________ 

Elected/Appointed/Staff: ___Elected____________________________________________________ 

Length of Service with District: _2 years with MWDOC, 4 years with Yorba Linda Water District as elected Board 

Member__________ 

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as commi�ees, events, workshops, conferences, Governance

Academy, etc.): I have a�ended most of the quarterly mee�ngs for ISDOC (Independent Special Districts of Orange

County) over the last 6 years.  I spent 2 years working with Jim Fisler and Saundra Jacobs (both past ISDOC Presidents) to

successfully revise the Special District dues structure created in 2000 to more accurately and fairly reflect revenue and

dues payable to LAFCO._As part of this process I a�ended virtually all ISDOC Board mee�ngs for 2 years._____________

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associa�ons (CSAC, ACWA, League, etc.):  Over the last 6

years I have a�ended most of the conferences held by the Urban Water Ins�tute, ACWA, the Colorado River Water Users,

as well as many Metropolitan Water District Board mee�ngs._________   ___________________________

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Associa�on of Governments, etc.): _For the 2 years that it took to

ini�ate, revise and successfully change the LAFCO dues required of Special Districts in Orange County, I a�ended virtually

all of the monthly OC-LAFCO mee�ngs._________________________________________________________________

4. List civic organiza�on involvement: _I was elected twice and served on the Yorba Linda Water District Board, a Special

District. I’ve ac�vely par�cipated in the WACO (Water Advisory Commi�ee of Orange County) both in a�endance and

planning of the mee�ngs.___________________________________________________________________________

ATTACHMENT 1c





Candidate Statement 

Arlene Schafer 
Costa Mesa Sanitary District 

Southern Network, Seat C 

It has been an honor serving you on CSDA’s Board of Directors for the past nineteen 
years. I have had the privilege of establishing long lasting relationships with local 
officials that forged an organization to become one of the leading advocacy groups in 
California on statewide and national issues. I am proud of my past and current board 
members for the accomplishments we achieved to enhance special district’s visibility in 
the capital, as well as broadening educational opportunities to help you govern 
effectively and openly. There is much more important work to be done, so I humbly ask 
for your trust and support in re-electing me to Seat C of the Southern Network. 

I believe we are approaching a year that could have an everlasting effect on the way we 
provide services. It is very likely the November 2024 Statewide Ballot will have Initiative 
21-0042A1, which is now Initiative 1935. If approved by the voters, this initiative will
significantly restrict how we fund critical services like fire, parks, libraries, sewers, water,
etc. Initiative 1935 will jeopardize the ability of special districts to deliver essential
services, which is why as your CSDA representative I am committed to helping defeat
this deceptive and dangerous measure.

In addition to my advocacy efforts, I believe CSDA provides some of the best training 
and professional development programs for local government officials. I will continue 
serving on the Professional Development Committee to work with CSDA staff and 
others on making sure you continue receiving top quality workshops, seminars, and 
conferences. I hope I earned your trust by voting for me by July 14, 2023. 

ATTACHMENT 2a



2023 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET 
The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and Resolution/minute order: 

Name:  Arlene Schafer 

District/Company:  Costa Mesa Sanitary District 

Title:  Board of Directors – Vice President 

Elected/Appointed/Staff:     Elected 

Length of Service with District:  25 Years 

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events,
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, etc.):

I served on CSDA Board of Directors and several committees including chair of the membership 

and professional development committees and served on the legislative and fiscal, and I served 

on the Alliance Executive Council. I have completed the Special District Leadership Academy, 

Good Governance Foundation workshop and I attend the annual conference and Legislative Days. 

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations (CSAC, ACWA,
League, etc.):

I have been associated with the Solid Waste Association of North America (SWANA) of Southern 

California, and the Independent Special Districts of Orange County (ISDOC) and 

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association of Governments,
etc.):

I am a current member of the Board of Directors for CSDA Finance Corporation, and I am the 

former Vice President of ISDOC and the former commissioner of the Orange County Local 

Formation Commission (LAFCO). I am also the former Mayor of the City of Costa Mesa. 

4. List civic organization involvement:

Harbor Mesa Lions Club, Costa Mesa Chamber of Commerce, Ambassador for the City 

  Costa Mesa during special events. 

**Candidate Statement – Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to 
submit a candidate statement of no more than 300 words in length. Any statements 

received in the CSDA office after the nomination deadlines will not be included with the 
ballot. 

ATTACHMENT 2b



ATTACHMENT 3a


	0 2023.07.10 Regular Board Agenda final
	INVOCATION
	CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE
	ROLL CALL

	01 a Reg Board Mtg Minutes June
	INVOCATION –   Director Layton led the Board in the invocation.
	ROLL CALL
	8. Approve Compensation Schedule and Salary Step Chart for Fiscal Year 2023-2024


	02 a CC Financial Reports  (1)
	03 a 2023.07.10 CC3 AB 1234 Report D
	STAFF REPORT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  CC 3a
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
	Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator
	SUBJECT:    AB 1234 – Director Travel, Training, and Meeting Report


	RECOMMENDATION

	3 b Directors Report
	STAFF REPORT
	CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	MEETING DATE:     July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  CC 3b
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
	Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator
	SUBJECT: AB 1234 – Compensation and Reimbursement Report


	RECOMMENDATION

	04 a 2023.07.10 CC4 Conference Attendance
	STAFF REPORT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  CC 4
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
	Dena Lamarque, Board Clerk/Administrative Coordinator
	SUBJECT:    Approve Director Attendance at the CSDA  Annual Conference and the ACWA Fall Conference


	RECOMMENDATION

	04 b 23.07.10  CC 4 CSDA FALL CONFERENCE - Attachment 1
	04 c 23.07.10  CC 4 ACWA FALL CONFERENCE - Attachment 2
	05 b IEUA Amendments - Attachment 1 - LEAP (#9)
	CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER: 460002246-009 FOR
	SECTION 6 B., COMPENSATION IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:
	ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED.
	INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CHINO BASIN WATER

	05 c IEUA Amendments - Attachment 2 - Res Landscaping (#10)
	CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER: 4600000861-010 FOR
	SECTION 6, COMPENSATION IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:
	ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED.
	INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CHINO BASIN WATER

	05 d IEUA Amendments - Attachment 3 - GIES (#4)
	CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER: 460002827-004 FOR
	ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED.
	INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CHINO BASIN WATER

	05 IEUA~AMENDMENTS STAFF REP0RT - 2023.07.10
	STAFF REPORT
	CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: DI 5
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager


	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	ISSUES & ANALYSIS
	It is a priority of the Board to maintain good relationships with partner agencies in the basin. The contract with IEUA that extends the reach of the Landscape Evaluation and Audit Program beyond the District’s service area and into the District’s sph...
	FISCAL IMPACT:
	ATTACHMENT(S):
	1. Amendment No. 9 for Contract (#460002246-009) for the Landscape Evaluation and Audit Program
	2. Amendment No. 10 for Contract (#4600000861-010) for the Residential Landscaping Program


	06 GeneralManagerContract3 Attachment 1
	06-2023-07-10 DI6 GM Contract SR
	STAFF REPORT
	CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: DI 6
	FROM:  Ryan Sonnenberg, Personnel Committee Chair
	SUBJECT:  Approve Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) and Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager


	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	ISSUES & ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENT(S):
	1. Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (District) and Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager


	07 Solve the Water Crisis SR 2023.07
	STAFF REPORT
	CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: DI 7
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
	SUBJECT:  Approve Participation in the Solve the Water Crisis Coalition


	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	ISSUES & ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT

	08 a DI8 CLASS Fund SR
	S T A F F   R E P O R T
	CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  DI 8
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
	SUBJECT:  Approve Participation in the California CLASS Prime Fund Investment Program and Amendments to Policy No. 18 and Policy No. 19


	RECOMMENDATION
	Review, discuss, and approve participation in the California CLASS Prime Fund investment program, assign a dollar amount to invest, and make changes to Policy No. 18 increasing the number of signatories to District accounts and Policy No. 19 allowing ...
	BACKGROUND
	ISSUES/ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENT(S):
	1.  California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement


	08 b 23-07-10 DI 8 Attach 1 - CLASS-Information-Statement
	08 c 23-07-10 - DI 8 - Attach 2 - California CLASS Features and Benefits
	06.22 - California CLASS Features and Benefits 
	Page 1
	Page 2


	08 d - 23-07-10 - DI 8 - Attach 3 - CBWCD Proposed Cash  Investments - Eide Bailly - 23-07-10
	Sheet1

	08 e Policy No. 18
	Policy No. 18 – Signatory Authorization for District Financial Accounts

	08 f Policy No. 19
	Policy No. 19 – Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures

	09 a Policy No. 30-1 SR
	S T A F F   R E P O R T
	CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  DI 9
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
	SUBJECT:  Approve Amendment to Policy No. 30-1


	RECOMMENDATION
	Review, discuss, and approve amendment to Policy No. 30-1, specifying overtime policy and procedures for employees working a traditional 40-hour workweek as well as part-time employees, temporary employees, and interns.
	BACKGROUND
	ISSUES/ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENT(S):
	1.  Policy No. 30-1


	09 b Policy No 30-1 DI 11- Overtime Attachment 1 - ES Notes
	Policy No. 30-1 – Overtime-Alternative Work Week

	10 a DI10 CSDA Elections SR
	S T A F F   R E P O R T
	CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
	MEETING DATE: July 10, 2023 AGENDA ITEM:  DI 10
	FROM:  Elizabeth Skrzat, General Manager
	SUBJECT:  Select a Candidate for the Southern California Network Seat C of the 2024-2026 California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors
	RECOMMENDATION:  Review, discuss, and select a candidate for the Southern California Network Seat C of the 2024-2026 California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors.


	BACKGROUND
	ISSUES/ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENT(S):
	1. a.  Al Nederhood, Municipal Water District of Orange County Candidate Statement


	10 b - 23-07-10 - Attach 1a - CSDA Elections - Al Nederhood Statement
	10 b - 23-07-10 - Attach 1b - CSDA Elections - Nederhood Support Letter
	CSDA Support Letter - Al Nederhood 050823 no merge
	Final CSDA SoQ - Nederhood
	Final 2023 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and Resolution
	Final 2023 MWDOC RESOLUTION 2135 final

	10 b - 23-07-10 - Attach 1c - CSDA Elections - Al Nederhood - Form
	10 c - 23-07-10 - Attach 2a - CSDA Elections - Arlene Schafer Statement
	10 c - 23-07-10 - Attach 2b - CSDA Elections - Arlene Schafer Form
	10 d - 23-07-10 - Attach 3 - CSDA Election - John Skerbelis Info
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



